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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRARGEEETIEENRR DT

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the results of China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Operating Results

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue in the amount of
approximately HK$332,034,000 (2022: HK$323,028,000). The
Group's revenue was principally derived from the exploration,
production and distribution of natural gas segment of approximately
HK$332,034,000 (2022: HK$323,028,000). During the year, neither
the money lending business segment nor the sales of food and
beverages segment contributed any revenue to the Group (2022:
both Nil).

The Group seized the opportunity of domestic macroeconomic
recovery and demand recovery in the domestic gas market especially
in the second half of 2023 as well as steady gas production in the
period which override the negative factors including slow economic
recovery, lower market demand and unsteady gas production for
maintenance of gas processing facilities of Kashi project in the first
half of 2023.

The Group's revenue increased by approximately HK$9,006,000
or 2.8% year-on-year to approximately HK$332,034,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2023 which was due to above favourable
external factors especially in the second half of 2023, higher market
demand for cooler winter season in the second half of 2023 as
compared with the same period of 2022 and improved gas production
situation of Kashi project.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA") increased from approximately HK$216,958,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$219,443,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2023 by approximately HK$2,485,000
or 1.1% which was in line with the increase in revenue by
approximately HK$9,006,000 or 2.8% year-on-year.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBARBREEEEE T wmNR I

Reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$2,686,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022
turned around to provision of impairment of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$1,803,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023 whereas reversal of impairment of intangible assets
of approximately HK$10,340,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 turned around to provision of impairment of intangible assets
of approximately HK$3,330,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023. This was the result of narrow down the difference between
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (“CGU") of the
Kashi Project as at 31 December 2023 and the carrying amount of the
CGU of the Kashi Project as at 31 December 2023. In addition, the
fair value of the properties in Hong Kong fell below the carrying value
as at 31 December 2023. This carried out provision for impairment of
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$938,000.

For calculation of the recoverable amount of the CGU of the Kashi
Project, the key quantitative inputs included the current year and
budgeted years’ net profit and cash flows to the Kashi Project and the
pre-tax discount rate of 16.8% for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: 16.8%). The carrying amount of the CGU of the Kashi Project
as at 31 December 2023 of approximately HK$2,152,847,000 which
exceeded the recoverable amount of the CGU of the Kashi Project as
at 31 December 2023 of approximately HK$2,148,652,000 to bring
out the provision of impairment of intangible assets of approximately
HK$3,330,000 and the provision of impairment of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$865,000 respectively.

The impairment assessment as at 31 December 2023 was made by
APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited, an independent third
party valuer (the “valuer”). The methodology, the key general and
specific assumptions on which the valuer had based its determination
of the CGU'’s recoverable amount as at 31 December 2023 were the
same as those adopted for the assessment as at 31 December 2022.

The valuer has also made assessment of the fair value of the properties
in Hong Kong as at 31 December 2023. Provision for impairment of
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$938,000 was
made for the variance arisen between the fair value and the carrying
value.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRAHBEEEEENRR DN

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
approximately HK$13,736,000 or 16.5% to approximately
HK$69,529,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023. This was
mainly due to decrease in reversal of impairment of property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$4,489,000, decrease in reversal
of impairment of intangible assets of approximately HK$13,670,000,
increase in provision of other receivables, net of approximately
HK$1,555,000 and increase in income tax charge of approximately
HK$13,029,000, offset by decrease in staff costs by approximately
HK$2,479,000, decrease in fair value loss of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$7,198,000, decrease
in depreciation of right-of-use assets of approximately HK$2,134,000
and decrease in finance costs of approximately HK$5,440,000.

Decrease in EBITDA margin by 1.1% year-on-year to 66.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2023 with decrease in net profit margin by
4.9% year-on-year to 20.7% for the year ended 31 December 2023
was mainly due to the above reasons mentioned in decrease in profit
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

As a result of improved depreciation of Renminbi (“RMB") against
the Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD") during the year ended 31 December
2023, the exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
attributable to owners of the Company decreased from exchange loss
of approximately HK$134,252,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 to exchange loss of approximately HK$63,177,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023. Meanwhile, the exchange differences
on translation of foreign operations attributable to non-controlling
interests also decreased from exchange loss of approximately
HK$1,077,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 to exchange
loss of approximately HK$465,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Such exchange difference just represented the translation difference
of currency between RMB and the HKD in the presentation of
consolidated financial statements and did not have any significant
impact on the operations of the Group.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBARBREEEEE T wmNR I

Exploration and evaluation assets

The exploration and evaluation assets represented costs directly
associated with exploratory wells (drilling cost and others) that
are capitalised and pending a determination of whether sufficient
guantities of potentially economic gas reserves have been discovered.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors considered
that the exploration and evaluation assets capitalised in the previous
years and utilised for generating revenue in the development stage
should be reclassified as oil properties under Property, Plant and
Equipment.

As mentioned in note 17 to the financial statements on page 120
of this report, during the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group did not incur any exploration and evaluation cost (2022:
Nil), and no exploration and evaluation assets (2022: approximately
HK$50,798,000) which was reclassified to oil properties under
property, plant and equipment. This was the reason why the
exploration and evaluation assets decreased by approximately
HK$9,000 year-on-year to approximately HK$256,000 as at 31
December 2023.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represented
the fair value of listed equity securities based on quoted market
price (level 1 fair value measurement) as at 31 December 2023.
Decline of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss by
approximately HK$1,603,000 or 5.6% year-on-year to approximately
HK$27,251,000 as at 31 December 2023 was mainly due to poor
stock market sentiment under the slow economic recovery after the
COVID-19 pandemic during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRAHBEEEEENRR DN

Other payables and accruals

Other payables and accruals represented balances payable to
contractors engaged by the Group to perform exploration, evaluation
and development works on the area designated in the Petroleum
Contract, and the receipt in advance from China National Petroleum
Corporation (“CNPC") as at 31 December 2023. Decrease in other
payables and accruals by approximately HK$71,199,000 or 36.3%
year-on-year to approximately HK$125,041,000 as at 31 December
2023 was mainly due to settlement of payable to contractors of
approximately HK$65,710,000 during the year ended 31 December
2023.

Other borrowings

The other borrowings represented pledged borrowings which
were denominated in RMB repayable partly in 2 years and fully in
3 years from the drawdown date. Other borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB133,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$143,640,000) are repayable before 31 December 2024 whereas
other borrowings amounted to approximately RMB194,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$209,520,000) will be repayable
within coming 2 years.

Business Review

Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas Segment

The Petroleum Contract

The Company’s indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, China Era Energy
Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China Era”) entered into a
petroleum contract (the “Petroleum Contract”) with CNPC for the
drilling, exploration, development and production of oil and/or natural
gas within the specified site located in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin,
Xinjiang, PRC (“Kashi Project”). The Petroleum Contract is for a term
of 30 years commencing 1 June 2009.

Under the Petroleum Contract, China Era shall apply its appropriate
and advanced technology and management expertise and assign
its competent experts to perform exploration, development and
production of oil and/or natural gas within the site. In the event
that any oil field and/or gas field is discovered within the site, the
development and production costs shall be borne by CNPC and China
Era in the proportion of 51% and 49%, respectively.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
TBARBREEEEE T wmNR I

According to the Petroleum Contract, the exploration period covers 6
years. The managements have devoted much of its resources during
the period in exploration and research studies. On 6 December 2017,
China Era and CNPC entered into a supplemental and amendment
agreement to the Petroleum Contract (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) extending the First Phase exploration period to 5
December 2017 and agreeing on the aggregation of the costs
incurred by CNPC between 1 June 2009 and 5 December 2017 with
the pre-contract costs. The costs incurred between 1 June 2009
and 31 December 2015 was in the amount of RMB651,653,000
(mainly including three completed wells, reconstruction of natural gas
processing plant and the operating costs incurred during the period).
In 2018, the cost incurred by CNPC between 1 January 2016 and 31
December 2017 in the amount of approximately RMB94,042,000 was
confirmed. On 20 June 2019, China Era and CNPC entered into a
second supplemental agreement to the Petroleum Contract (the “2nd
Supplemental Agreement”), which agreed the amount of profit
sharing between 2009 and 2017.

The filing of the Overall Development Program (“ODP”") was
completed on 8 July 2019, and the development period of the Kashi
Project commenced with effect from 9 July 2019. Following to the
operation of the new gas processing facilities on 1 July 2020, the Joint
Management Committee of North Kashi Block Cooperations Project
resolved that the commercial production stage commenced with
effect from 1 October 2020. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the gas processing facilities were on the right track and no
further documents were entered.

The Status of Gas Sales Agreements

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2020,
the Gas Sales Agreements (“GSA") was signed on 27 April 2020. The
terms of the GSA included the quantity of volume commitments, gas
quality, price terms, delivery obligations and delivery point, etc. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, the terms of the GSA remained
the same.

Segment Performance

During the year, this operation of Kashi Project together with the
natural gas distribution operation in Karamay, Xinjiang, contributes
revenue of approximately HK$332,034,000 (2022: approximately
HK$323,028,000) and the segment profit before income tax
was approximately HK$114,598,000 (2022: approximately
HK$118,413,000).
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
THANGEEEEENRR ST

The results of operations in exploration, production and distribution of
natural gas segment and costs incurred for exploration and evaluation
assets acquisition and exploration activities are shown as below:

Results of operations in exploration, production, and distribution of

natural gas segment

Revenue

Direct cost

Other income

(Provision)/reversal of impairment of
property, plant and equipment

(Provision)/reversal of impairment of
intangible assets

Provision for impairment of other
receivables

Selling and distribution expenses

Operating expenses

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Finance cost

Results of operations before income tax

Yoz

BHEMKA

H A YA

W - BB RRE (B ) RE
B[

BV AE (BH) RERD

Hofth & W R R B B

HE RS HAX
RERX

e
BIVEESE
BERA

RAREE

FRAERZIINT -

ARRENF  LERDH 7 EZ

UWEHERFHEEWERDFREDEEZ
2023 2022
—E-= g

HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
332,034 323,028
(48,367) (49,133)
5,262 7,600

(865) 2,686
(3,330) 10,340
(1,926) -
(29,052) (29,823)
(32,094) (29,247)
(43,679) (46,434)
(25,872) (26,513)
(37,513) (44,091)
114,598 118,413
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Natural gas business analysis

Our Group's principal activities are exploration, development
production and sales of oil natural gas, until the date of issue of
this report, our Group currently has an oil natural gas exploration,
development and production project, Kashi Project and a project
mainly engaged in a business of natural gas pipeline transportation
and sales which is situated in Xinjiang region of the PRC.

The Company’s indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, China Era Energy
Power Investment (Hong Kong) Limited (“China Era”) entered into
a petroleum contract (“Petroleum Contract”) with CNPC for the
exploration, development and production of oil and/or natural gas
within the specified site located in North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin,
Xinjiang, PRC (”Kashi Project”).

Since 19 August 2016, the Company owns 51% subsidiary of
Karamay Fuhai Petroleum Chemical Engineering Co., Limited*. This
subsidiary owns 51% interest of 52 f/ K E MR AR AR, Such
company’s principal activities are mainly operations of natural gas
pipeline transportation and sales in the neighbour region of Karamay
City, Xinjiang, PRC (“Karamay Project”).

Analysis of business performance for the year ended 31
December 2023

XRREBE D
AEEIEXGRUHE RE -LTERHEE

OBRRAR  BEAFRETAY  A5E
RITHEA—EABRRARDR FEREE
TR B —IERAIR B A — B AR R RE Bk A
ERTLEBNRNUBFER U E
HBIRA o

ARARZHEEZEE2EMERRPBEFRERER
BEB)ARAR ([HEFK]) L EAH
SETY—MAmEeH(THEEMN]) NP
[0 37 98 55 BB K 2 3 R A L [ 38 2 46 T 3 B B
?%J\)Eﬁ%é&ii?‘tﬁiﬁ&/ii%%ﬁ(Fﬂgﬁlﬁ
B °

W_F—AR"ENATNLBRGE ARFHEE
RUBKEEAMETARRES1% 2k -
ZWBARES R I KEBRRBR AR
51% 2t AAEBEBRETEMER
ABFmATE ((RURFEA ) ZEX
RREBRAEMBE °

BE-ZE-_=F+-A=+—HLFEE®
RESW

Kashi Project EfEAe
For the year ended  For the year ended Increase/
31 December 2023 31 December 2022 (decrease)
BE-S-=F  BECRCCF
t-A=t+-ALt +=ZA=t+-BL /(%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TiErx FHET TET ARt
Revenue Wz 316,370 308,267 8,103 2.6%
Direct cost BHERA (38,442) (39,942) 1,500 (3.8%
Other income EtblA 5,229 7,565 (2,336) (30.9%)
(Provision)/reversal of impairment of nE - BERREBE)AE
property, plant and equipment B (865) 2,686 (3,551) N/M
(Provision)/reversal of impairment of BMEE(BE)/REERR
intangible assets (3,330 10,340 (13,670) N/M
Provision of impairment of other At ENFIRRERE
receivables (1,926) - (1,926) N/M
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERX (29,052) (29,823) 771 (2.6%
Operating expenses BERX (28,691) (26,529) (2,162) 8.1%
Depreciation wE (40,534) (43,139) 2,605 (6.0%)
Amortisation of intangible assets BYAERHE (25,872) (26,513) 641 (2.4%
Finance cost RERA (37,513) (44,091) 6,578 (14.9%
Results of operations before income tax ~ BRFASRATAR & %45 115,374 118,821 (3.447) (2.9%)
* The English names are for identification only * BXEFEHRBS
N/M: Not Meaningful £ &3
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Increase in revenue

Revenue in 2023 increased by approximately HK$8,103,000 or 2.6%
year-on-year to approximately HK$316,370,000. This was mainly due
to higher demand recovery in the domestic gas market especially in
the second half of 2023 for economic recovery and cooler winter
season in the second half of 2023 as compared with the same period
of 2022 and improved gas production situation of Kashi project.

Decrease in direct cost

Direct cost decreased by approximately HK$1,500,000 or 3.8% to
approximately HK$38,442,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023 because the work volume on repair and maintenance of gas
processing facilities and pipelines in 2023 were less than the work
volume in 2022.

Decrease in other income

Other income decreased by approximately HK$2,336,000 or 30.9% to
approximately HK$5,229,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023
because less senior management fee refund in 2023 as compared
with the refund in 2022.

Increase in provision of impairments

As a result of narrowing down the difference between the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit ("CGU") of the Kashi project as
at 31 December 2023 and the carrying amount of the CGU of the
Kashi project as at 31 December 2023, the provision of impairment
of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$865,000
(2022: reversal of impairment of approximately HK$2,686,000) and
the provision of impairment of intangible assets of approximately
HK$3,330,000 (2022: reversal of impairment of approximately
HK$10,340,000) was arisen for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Provision of impairment of other receivables of approximately
HK$1,926,000 (2022: Nil) was made for the year ended 31 December
2023 for general provision for certain long outstanding other
receivables as at 31 December 2023.

12 China Energy Development Holdings Limited HE
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Increase in operating expenses

Increase in operating expenses by approximately HK$2,162,000
or 8.1% to approximately HK$28,691,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023 because higher office and administration expenses
in 2023 when compared with 2022 for the full year office operations
after the epidemic recovery in 2023.

Decrease in finance cost

Finance cost in 2023 decreased by approximately HK$6,578,000
or 14.9% to approximately HK$37,513,000. This was mainly due
to during 2023 repayment of the borrowing was made and thus
decrease the yearly average balance of other borrowings year-on-year.

Decrease in operating profit before income tax

Operating profit before income tax in 2023 decreased by
approximately HK$3,447,000 or 2.9% year-on-year to approximately
HK$115,374,000. This was mainly due to increase in provision for
impairment of property, plant and equipment and provision for
impairment of intangible assets.

EFITIE I

HE-_E-_=HF#+_A=+—HLFEHD
BT HIEINA2,162,00078 7T 508.1% & 4
28,691,000 L RER - _=—F & Bk
Bt 2FRAETEEBTHARITEHIHE
TR FHFEN -

& AR

TEC=F@MERART R 496,578,000
JLEK 14.9% & #737,513,000/8 7T * T EE A
RIZEZ=FREEEE SHEFRNHME
BEFHRBEEFERD -

B FIT 73 15 B AE &8 7B 2

— = —

=

—FRBHAICERFIEF R DL
3,447,000 0 52.9% = 49 115,374,000 /8
T XTERHRFAYE BELRBEZR
ERELREVEE ZRERELN -

Karamay Project RHUBFER
For the year ended For the year ended Increase/
31 December 2023 31 December 2022 (decrease)
BE-Z-=F HBE-Z-C-F
tZA=+-ALt t+=B=t-AL 8/ (d)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 %
FET FET FET Bt
Revenue gy 15,664 14,761 903 6.1%
Direct cost EERAR (9,925) (9,191) (734) 8.0%
Other income LR TN 33 35 @) (5.7%)
Operating expenses LY (3,403) 2.718) (685) 25.2%
Depreciation e (3,145) (3,295) (150) (4.6%)
Results of operations before income tax BT Al AT & % & (776) (408) (368) (90.2%)
N/M: Not Meaningful #EZ %
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Increase in revenue

The gas pipeline transportation and sales were relatively steady over
the couple of years as this operation was less subject to the influence
of COVID epidemic. Revenue increased slightly by approximately
HK$903,000 by 6.1% to approximately HK$15,664,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Increase in direct cost

Increase in direct cost by approximately HK$734,000 or 8.0% to
approximately HK$9,925,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023
was mainly due to rising price of oil products pushed up the pricing
of infrastructure natural gas supply and the related direct production
cost. The direct cost also increased during 2023 when compared with
2022.

Increase in operating expenses

Operating expenses increased by approximately HK$685,000 or
25.2% to approximately HK$3,403,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023 because higher office and administration expenses in
2023 when compared with 2022 after epidemic recovery in 2023.

Decrease in results of operations before income tax
Decrease in results of operations before income tax to loss of

approximately HK$776,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023
was mainly due to increase in operating cost for the year.

Y 25 18 0

HRAREEEH RIHEERIIEMRLE
FERL ALNZEBEBRBEHFMAEE
E BE_ZE_=ZF+_A=+—HBILHF
& U A ES B3 49903,000 7 7T 51 6.1% 2 49
15,664,000 % 7T °

BEEAEM

HIE—ZE-=F+=-fA=+—HIEHEEKA
2 F 38 1149 734,000 7% 703 8.0% = 9,925,000
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MEFHERATREEVH LR EBEEREEE
RAER ME-E-_=FREEIAILE
W= —F B LR -

BEFITIE I

BE-—S-_=—F+-_A=+—HILFEEX
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ZZFHFTEM-

B AT 15 7 B 75 2 B 0
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Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The Group did not record any revenue from the sales of food and
beverages business segment in 2023 and 2022. The segment loss
before tax was approximately HK$410,000 (2022: approximately
HK$509,000). No revenue was recorded during the year, mainly
due to the Group’s intention to reduce reliance on sales of food
and beverage. We will continue to keep track of the economic
environment and review the future allocation of resource as and
when required.

Money Lending Business

The Group did not generate any revenue in 2023 and 2022 from
the money lending business operated by its indirect wholly owned
subsidiary, Zhong Neng Finance Ltd., a licensed money lender under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap.163, Laws of Hong Kong). The
segment loss before tax was approximately HK$209,000 (2022:
approximately HK$168,000). The Group continued to adopt a
stringent credit policy to mitigate the credit risk arising from the
money lending business.

Financial Review

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has outstanding secured
other borrowings of approximately HK$353,160,000 (2022:
approximately HK$486,080,000). The cash and cash equivalents of
the Group were approximately HK$45,203,000 (2022: approximately
HK$131,296,000). The Group's current ratio (current assets to current
liabilities) was approximately 47.9% (2022: 35.4%). The ratio of total
liabilities to total assets of the Group was approximately 26.8% (2021:
32.6%).

As at 31 December 2023, the convertible notes due in 2041 has an
outstanding principal amount of HK$679,670,000. These convertible
notes do not carry any interest, but carry the right to convert the
principal amount into ordinary shares of the Company. The conversion
price is HK$0.168 per share (subject to adjustments) and a maximum
number of 4,045,654,762 shares may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights attached to the convertible notes in
full. During the year ended 31 December 2023, no convertible note
was converted to ordinary shares of the Company.

HERMRARBEL

RZBZ=ZFR-_T-__F AEEIEF
HERMEARBER D MBERGIMKaE - &R
BRI #4145 410,000 8T (ZF ==
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BIEZEK
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Charge of Assets

Account receivables in the amount of HK$48,302,605 were pledged
as security for other borrowings as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
Nil). In addition, the rights of natural gas sharing amount and
sales revenue under the product sharing agreement and the sales
agreement were pledged as security for other borrowings as at 31
December 2023 (2022: same pledge as at 31 December 2023).

Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and the
exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the
HK dollar and Renminbi exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations
and market trends have always been the concern of the Group.
The policy of the Group for its operating entities operates in their
corresponding local currencies to minimise currency risks. The Group,
after reviewing its exposure for the time being, did not enter into
any derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks
during the year. However, management will monitor foreign currency
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure if necessary.

Capital Commitments

The Group had capital commitments of approximately HK$ 1,945,000
(of which approximately HK$1,001,000 would be borne by CNPC)
(2022: approximately HK$35,477,000 of which approximately
HK$4,302,000 would be borne by CNPC) and approximately
HK$113,346,000 (2022: approximately HK$117,600,000) as at 31
December 2023 in respect of capital expenditure of exploration,
production and distribution of natural gas segment and capital
contributions in a subsidiary respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2023 and 2022.
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Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed 43 full-time and
part-time staff members (2022: 41). Staff costs during the year
ended 31 December 2023, including directors’ emoluments, totalled
approximately HK$18,217,000 (2022: approximately HK$20,696,000).
In order to enhance the morale and productivity of employees,
employees are remunerated based on their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practices. Compensation policies and packages
of management staff and functional heads are being reviewed on
a yearly basis. In addition to basic salary, performance related salary
may also be awarded to employees based on internal performance
evaluation. The Group also invests in continuing education and
training programmes for management staff and other employees with
a view to upgrade their skills and knowledge. These training courses
comprise internal courses run by the management of the Group and
external courses provided by professional trainers and range from
technical and safety training for the natural gas field workers to
financial and administrative trainings for management staff.

Going Concern Basis

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$158,851,000. This condition
indicates the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. Our auditor’s
opinion includes an emphasis of matter on going concern, without
qualification.

The Group’s current liabilities as at 31 December 2023 are mainly
attributable to property, plant and equipment/exploration and
evaluation cost payables amounting to approximately HK$77,256,000
(31 December 2022: approximately HK$142,966,000) and other
borrowings in the amount of approximately HK$143,640,000 (31
December 2022: approximately HK$305,760,000). The directors
of the Company are of the view that the Group will be able to
successfully persuade these contractors not to insist on demanding
repayment and negotiate with the creditor in the PRC to extend the
borrowing period. However, there is no certainty that the contractors
and the creditor will not demand repayment.
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In view of the net current liabilities position, the Directors have
carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period of not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period based on certain underlying assumptions including
(i) U.K. Prolific, a single largest substantial shareholder expressed
willingness to provide financial support in case the Company is unable
to meet all the obligations; (ii) the Group being able to successfully
persuade these contractors not to insist on demanding repayment of
the construction cost payables and negotiate with the creditor in the
PRC to extend the borrowing period; and (iii) the Group being able
to raise adequate funding through bank borrowings or otherwise.
Taking into account the above assumptions, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group will have sufficient working capital
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due within the
twelve months from 31 December 2023. The Directors will continue
to negotiate with banks and other financiers, financial institutions
and potentially interested investors with the view to obtaining new
funding whether by way of equity or debt financing to improve the
Company’s financial position and/or liquidity, with the objective of
removing the emphasis of matter on going concern.

The Audit Committee’s view

During the audit process, the audit committee discussed with the
management during which the management presented the financial
highlights and conveyed the key audit matters expressed by the
auditors. After considering the circumstances surrounding the
key audit matters and the management’s presentation, the audit
committee concurred with the management's judgments regarding
the going concern basis of the financial statements.
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PROSPECTS

Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas

The project details and key milestones for the Kashi Project were
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 3 December 2010. In
essence, the Petroleum Contract covers an exploration period of up
to six years (which was already extended by CNPC pursuant to the
Supplemental Contract), a development period and a production
period. The development period commences on the date after
the date of filing completion of the ODP and ends on the date of
the completion of the development operations required by the
ODP to be completed during the development period. The end of
the development period also signifies the commencement of the
commercial production of the project and hence the production
period, which runs for fifteen years for an oil field and twenty
years for a gas field (subject to extension with the approval of the
government).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 July 2019, the
filing of the ODP of Kashi Project was completed on 8 July 2019 and
the development period commenced with effect from 9 July 2019. As
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2020, the
GSA was signed on 27 April 2020. Following to the operation of the
new gas processing facilities on 1 July 2020, the Joint Management
Committee of North Kashi Block Cooperations Project resolved that
the commercial production stage commenced with effect from 1
October 2020.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 September
2021, in the second half of 2021, further new production wells
commenced operation or construction at the Akemomu Gas Field,
including: (1) the commencement of operation of a new well, WD-1,
which was originally designed as an exploratory well and was turned
into a production well due to its production of commercial gas flow; (2)
the completion of drilling of a new production well, AK1-H8, which
is a horizontal well, currently in the operation since the first quarter
of 2022; and (3) the commencement of drilling of a new production
well, AK4-1, which is a vertical well, and is now on operation since
the first quarter of 2022.
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CEO'’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRAHBEEEEENRR DN

The Company’s management will continue to follow up with potential
lenders and investors with the view to secure additional debt and/
or equity funding to finance the further development of the project.
Further announcement(s) will be made by the Company as and when
there is any significant progress of the Kashi Project.

Sales of Food and Beverages Business

The management has taken a cautious approach to manage the
operations of the food and beverages segment. The Group will assess
the value and performance of this segment from time to time, and
continue to keep track of the economic environment and review the
future allocation of resources as and when required.

Money Lending Business

The management will continue to look for high quality borrowers in
order to minimise the risk of default. The management has taken a
cautious approach in money lending business in view of the Group’s
current financial position.

APPRECIATION

Looking forward, we will continue our existing strategy of fostering
opportunity for sustainable growth with the aim of enhancing return
for our shareholders. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our team of
devoted staff and the third party professionals for their outstanding
services and to our shareholders, customers, contractors, bankers,
creditors and investors for your continued support.

Zhao Guogqgiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 March 2024
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Guogiang (“Mr. Zhao"), aged 66, joined the Company
as an executive director in December 2009 and was elected as the
chief executive officer on 29 December 2009. He graduated from his
study for Physics at Qufu Normal University. He has nearly 35 years
of working experience in exploration and exploitation of petroleum
industry. He acted as senior engineer in Sinopec Shengli Qilfield
Company (the “Shengli Oilfield”) and was awarded the Top-notch
talent from China Petroleum & Chemical Shengli Oilfield. Mr. Zhao
was appointed as an alternative director to Dr. Gu on 29 June 2015
and no longer serving for this position since Dr. Gu has retired as non-
executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the AGM on 9
June 2023.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Zhenming (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 78, is experienced in
the energy industry in China and has served as the Deputy Director
of Economics and Technology Research Institute of China National
Petroleum Corporation, and the Chairman of the Energy Commission
of the China Information Industry Association of the National
Development and Reform Commission. Mr. Zhang was an executive
Director of the Company between 9 June 2010 and 27 November
2014.

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying ("Mr. Cheng”), aged 55, joined the Company
as an independent non-executive director in January 2016. He is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member of the Certified Practicing
Accountants Australia. He holds a master’s degree in business
law from Monash University, Australia and a bachelor’s degree in
commerce accounting from The Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. He has extensive experience in finance and accounting, and
has worked as financial controller in various private and public listed
companies in Hong Kong, Singapore and the United States.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEAEZRE

Mr. Lee Man Tai (“Mr. Lee”), aged 47, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in January 2016. He graduated
from Lingnan University, Hong Kong in 2000 with a bachelor’s
degree in business administration and obtained a master’s degree
in business administration in financial services from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2010. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. He has approximately 20 years of professional experience
in accounting and auditing. He worked in audit firms between 2000
and 2006, and has occupied the positions of chief financial officer,
financial controller and company secretary of several listed companies
in Hong Kong between 2006 and 2016. He is an independent non-
executive director of Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1581), Rizhao Port Jurong Co., Ltd. (stock code: 6117) and
Yunhong Guixin Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8349), which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was appointed as the chief
financial officer and company secretary of China New Consumption
Group Limited (formerly known as State Innovation Holdings Limited,
a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8275) since June 2021 and August 2021, respectively. He is also a
responsible officer for type 1 and 6 regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

Senior Management

Mr. Siu Kai Chun (with former name Siu Kwok Yee) (“Mr. Siu”)
was appointed as the Company Secretary and an Authorised
Representative of the Company with effect from 30 June 2022. Mr.
Siu, aged 55, joined the Company in December 2021 and is the
chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Siu has over 20 years
of experience in auditing, finance and accounting and is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Siu graduated
from the City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree
in business studies, completed the executive master of business
administration programme at Lingnan (University) College, Sun Yat-
sen University, Guangzhou, China and obtained the master of science
degree in Finance from the University College Dublin, The National
University of Ireland.
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Corporate Governance Report

Overview

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures. The Board recognizes the importance of and
benefit from good corporate governance practices. We believe that
improvement in corporate governance not only assists the Company
in effective supervision and control on its business operation, but also
attracts investment from international institutional investors, thereby
creating and enhancing shareholder value.

1. Corporate Governance Practices

The Stock Exchange has promulgated the code provisions
on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the "CG
Code") and the applicable Main Board Listing Rules. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the CG Code
with the applicable Main Board Listing Rules except for the
following:

(a)

In relation to Code Provision A.2.1 (subsequently
rearranged and renumbered as C.2.1) of the CG Code,
the roles of chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the
“CEO") should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual and the division of responsibilities
between the chairman and CEO should be clearly
established and set out in writing. During the Reporting
Period, Mr. Zhao Guogiang is the CEO of the Company.
During the year, the position of chairman is vacated and
the Board intends to identify satisfiable candidate to fill
the vacancy.

In relation to Code Provision E.1.2 (subsequently
rearranged and renumbered as F.2.2) of the CG Code, the
chairman of the Board should attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions raised up in the meeting.
During the Reporting Period, the position of chairman
is vacated, but other Directors and members of the
audit committee were present at the meeting to answer
questions from Shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report
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In relation to Code Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2
(subsequently rearranged and renumbered as B.2.2)
of the CG Code, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election while
all directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. During the Reporting Period,
Mr. Zong Ketao retired as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 10 June 2022 whereas Mr.
Zhang Zhenming was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 4 July 2022. According
to article 61(1)(c) of the articles of association of the
Company, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional Director shall hold office only until the
next general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at the meeting. For the Reporting
Period, all other remaining independent non-executive
directors of the Company have not been appointed for a
specific term but they are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
The management experience, expertise and commitment
of the re-electing Directors will be considered by the
nomination committee of the Company before their re-
election proposals are put forward to Shareholders. As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices regarding Directors’ appointment
are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

CG Code Provision C.1.4 requires that all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All the
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development during the year 2023. Our company
secretary has also circulated relevant training materials to
the Directors from time to time in the Reporting Period.
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Corporate Governance Report

In relation to Code Provision A.1.1 (subsequently
rearranged and renumbered as C.5.1) of the CG Code,
the board should meet regularly and board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. In relation to Code Provision C.1.2
(subsequently rearranged and renumbered as D.1.2) of
the CG Code, management should provide all members
of the board with monthly updates on the issuer’s
performance, position and prospects, which may include
budgets, forecasts, monthly management accounts and
material variance between the projections and actual
results. During the Reporting Period, although regular
Board meetings were held only on half-yearly basis and
management accounts were not circulated to Board
members on monthly basis, regular verbal updates
were given by the management to the Directors on
working level meetings from time to time, which the
Directors consider to be sufficient and appropriate in
the circumstances to enable them to form a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance and to discharge their duties.

With respect to Code Provision C.2.5 (subsequently
rearranged and renumbered as D.2.5) of the CG Code,
an issuer should have an internal audit function and
issuers without an internal audit function should review
the need for one on an annual basis and should disclose
the reasons for the absence of such a function in the
Corporate Governance Report. Due to the nature, size
and scale of operations and as a matter of cost-control
measures, the Group did not have internal audit function
during the Reporting Period. However, the Company will
carry out review on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group to assess the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.
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(g)  With respect to Code Provision D.1.2 of the CG Code,
management should provide all members of the
board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment to the issuer’s performance,
position and prospectus in sufficient detail to enable
the board as a whole and each director to discharge
the duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Main
Board Listing Rule. The information provided may include
background or explanatory information relating to matters
to be brought before the board, copies of disclosure
documents, budgets, forecasts and monthly and other
relevant internal financial statements such as monthly
management accounts and management updates. For
budgets, any material variance between the projections
and actual results should also be disclosed and explained.
Due to the nature, size and scale of operations and as
a matter of cost-control measures, the Group did not
have monthly updates to the board during the Reporting
Period. However, the management will carry out the
periodic at least quarterly and report immediately for any

urgent issues updates to the board.

(h)  With respect to revised Main Board Listing Rule 13.92,
the nomination committee (or the board) shall have
a policy concerning diversity of board members, and
shall disclose the policy on diversity or a summary of
the policy in the corporate governance report. Board
diversity differs according to the circumstances of each
issuer. While diversity of board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience), the Exchange
will not consider diversity to be achieved for a single
gender board. As a transitional arrangement, issuers
with a single gender board will have to appoint at least a
director of a different gender on the board no later than
31 December 2024. During the Reporting Period, all the
existing male Directors note the new requirement of the
Main Board Listing Rule to include a Director of different
gender to the Board by no later than 31 December 2024.
The Company will find a suitable female candidate and
nominate her to the nomination committee and the Board
for consideration of the appointment of a female Director
by no later than 31 December 2024. The Company
will make an announcement as and when there is any

progress.
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Corporate Governance Report

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
for the Group to safeguard investments of the shareholders
and assets of the Company at all times. Such systems aim to
help achieving the Group’s business objectives, safeguarding
assets and maintaining proper accounting records for provision
of reliable financial information. However, the design of the
systems is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement in the financial statements or loss
of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure
when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems covering all material controls in area of financial,
operational and compliance controls, various functions for
risks management as well as physical and information systems
security. The chief financial officer (the “CFO") has reported
to the audit committee from time to time during the year,
in conjunction with key findings identified by the external
auditors, findings and actions or measures taken in addressing
those internal controls. The audit committee in turn reports
any material issues to the Board. The Board, through the audit
committee, also sets targets for and reviews plan and progress
on continuous improvement work of the Company’s internal
control system with the CFO on a periodic basis.

Board of directors

(@)  Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
a total of four members including one executive director
and three independent non- executive directors. Members
of the Board have different professional and relevant
industry experiences and background so as to bring in
valuable contribution and advice for the development of
the Group’s business. Up to the date of this annual report,
the Company has three independent non-executive
directors representing not less than one-third of the
Board, and two of them are qualified accountants.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each incumbent independent non-executive
director of their independence to the Group. The Group
considered that all independent non-executive directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines. The names of the directors
and their respective biographies are set out on pages 21
to 22 of this annual report.

The Board meets periodically with the management to
discuss the Group’s strategies development and to review
the business operation. The Board also monitors and
controls financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. The names of the directors during the
financial year and their individual attendance of meeting
are set out below:

Name Board
#e gxg
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (CEO) HEB LT (TR 2
Dr. Gu Quan Rong' BREET 1
Mr. Zhang Zhenming RKERALE Wi
Mr. Cheng Chun Ying HiRELE W
Mr. Lee Man Tai PNRRE M
Notes:

1. Dr. Gu was resigned on 9 June 2023.

N/A Not Applicable
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The Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other.
Each of the independent non-executive directors have
confirmed in writing their independence from the
Company in accordance with the guidelines on director
independence of the Listing Rules. On this basis, the
Company considers all such directors to be independent.

The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of
the Group.

The major issues which were brought before the Board for
their decisions during the year include: (i) proposals related
to potential acquisition, investments, or any significant
capital expenditures; and (ii) formulation of operational
strategies and review of its financial performance and
results and the internal control system.

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets.

The Company has set up three Board committees, namely,
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee, to oversee particular aspect
of the Group’s affairs, details of which are set out in the
relevant sections below.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group’s businesses to management of
the Group. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of financial statements for Board approval
before publishing, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations.
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When the Board delegates aspects of its management
and administration functions to management, it has
given clear directions as to the powers of management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstance where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company.

In relation to the CG Code, all directors have participated
their own professional training by attending seminar/
programme/reading relevant materials in relation to the
business on directors’ duties.

The Company has attached much importance to the risk
management about directors’ liabilities and has arranged
appropriate liability insurance for Directors and senior
management of the Company. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own Code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors of the Company. All incumbent Directors
have confirmed following specific enquiry by the Company
that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code through the year.

Board diversity policy

On 27 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy (the "Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code. On 31 March 2016, the
Company revised the Board Diversity Policy. The Company
recognizes that the Board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company. In
designing the Board's composition, the Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience. All Board appointments
are based on merits and considered against a variety of objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(a)

As at the date of this annual report, the Chairman of the
Board is vacated. Mr. Zhao Guogiang was elected as the
CEO on 29 December 2009.

The CEO provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support
of the senior management, the CEO is also responsible
for ensuring that the directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meeting.

The directors focus on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
Directors are in charge of the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations. The directors are also
responsible for assisting the CEO in developing strategic
plans and formulating the company practices and
procedures, business objectives, and risk assessment for
the Board's approval.

Non-executive Directors

All non-executive directors, including independent non-
executive directors, of the Company, have not been appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and eligible for re-election in the AGM in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.
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7.

32

Remuneration of Directors 7.

(a)

The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 23 September 2005 with written terms of reference
and revised on 27 March 2012 and 30 December 2022 as
disclosed on the Company’s website. The primary duties
of the remuneration committee include the following:

i. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration;

ii.  to have the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The
Committee should consider factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration;

ii. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

iv.  to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management
in connection with any loss or termination of
their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for
the Company;
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v.  to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

vi.  to review and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules;

vii.  to advise shareholders of the Company on how
to vote with respect to any service contracts of
Directors that require shareholders’ approval under
the Listing Rules; and

viii.  to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Up to the date of this annual report, the members of the
remuneration committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun Ying
who acts as the chairman of the remuneration committee,
Mr. Zhang Zhenming and Mr. Lee Man Tai. The majority
of members of the remuneration committee is comprised
of independent non-executive directors of the Company.

The number of remuneration committee meeting held
during the year and record of individual attendance of
members, on a named basis, at meetings was set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report. The remuneration committee had reviewed and
approved the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was
set up by the remuneration committee on the basis of
their merit, qualification and competence.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee, having
regard to the Group’'s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.
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The Group's share option scheme as described in the
“Report of the directors” was approved at the general
meeting of the Company on 25 June 2013 and adopted
as the Group's long-term incentive scheme.

8. Nomination of Directors 8.

The Company has established a nomination committee since
27 March 2012 with written terms of reference and amended
on 27 August 2013 as disclosed on the Company’'s website.
The primary functions of the nomination committee include the
following:

34

to review the structure, size and composition (including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
the members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships on merits and
against objective criteria, with due regard on the benefits
of diversity on the Board, especially to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least
one-third of the Board;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the CEO, taking into account
the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, diversity and experience in the future; and
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v.  to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
to review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually.

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board of
directors with a diversity of skills and experience. The selection
and proposed appointment of the Directors are submitted to the
nomination committee of the Company for consideration prior
to Board approval, and the re-election of Directors is conducted
in accordance with the Articles. The criteria of assessing a
candidate include his/her ability to devote sufficient time and
attention to participate in the affairs of the Company including
the attendance of Board meetings and serving on committees,
to bring business experience to the Board and to contribute to
the Board diversity. If the candidate is proposed to be appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, his/her independence
shall be assessed in accordance with the requirements under
the Listing Rules. The totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall be evaluated in assessing his/
her suitability.

Up to the date of this annual report, the members of the
nomination committee comprised Mr. Cheng Chun Ying who
acts as the chairman of the nomination committee, Mr. Zhang
Zhenming and Mr. Lee Man Tai. The majority of members of
the nomination committee is comprised of independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

The number of nomination committee meeting held during
the year and record of individual attendance of members, on
a named basis, at meetings held during was set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report. The
nomination committee had reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, made recommendations on the
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive directors.
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9. Auditors’ remuneration

For the financial year, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the
auditor of the Company, received HK$1,000,000 in respect of
audit service provided to the Group. The auditors’ remuneration
has been duly approved by the audit committee and there was
no disagreement between the Board and the audit committee

on the selection and appointment of auditor.

10. Audit Committee

(@  The audit committee of the Company was established
on 30 January 2002. The written terms of reference of
the audit committee were revised on 27 March 2012
and 31 March 2016 as disclosed on the Company'’s
website. As at the date of this annual report, the audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Lee Man Tai (chairman of the audit
committee), Mr. Zhang Zhenming and Mr. Cheng Chun
Ying. Mr. Lee Man Tai and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying are
certified public accountants for many years. In the opinion
of the Board, the members of the audit committee have
sufficient financial management expertise to discharge

their duties.

(b)  The number of audit committee meetings held during
the year and record of individual attendance of members,
on a named basis, at meetings held was set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

(©)  The audit committee is delegated by the Board to assess
matters related to the financial statements of accounts
and to provide recommendations and advices, including

but not limited to the followings:

i to consider, and to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
audit fee and other terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation or

dismissal of the external auditor;

10.
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to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

to discuss with the external auditors before the
audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations and ensure co- ordination
where more than one audit firm is involved;

to develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-
audit services. For this purpose, external auditor shall
include any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or
any entity that a reasonable and informed third
party having knowledge of all relevant information
would reasonably conclude as part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Committee
should report to the Board, identifying any matters
in respect of which it considers that action or
improvement needed and making recommendations
as to the steps to be taken;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

in reviewing, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports before submission to
the Board, the Committee should focus particularly
on:

a. any changes in accounting policies and
practice;

b.  major judgmental areas;

c.  significant adjustments resulting from the
audit;
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d. the going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

e. compliance with accounting standards;

f. compliance with the Listing Rules and other
legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

g. the fairness and reasonableness of any
connected transaction and the impact of such
transaction on the profitability of the Group;

h. whether all relevant items have been
adequately disclosed in the Group’s financial
statements and whether the disclosures give a
fair view of the Group’s financial conditions;

any significant or unusual items that are, or
may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

J. the cash flow position of the Group.

and to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board;

vii. in regard to vi. above:

a. members of the Committee must liaise with
the Board and senior management. The
Committee must meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company’s auditors; and

b.  the Committee should consider any significant
or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in such reports and accounts and
must give due consideration to any matters
that have been raised by the Company’s
accountant, compliance officer or auditors.
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

XiV.
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to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of
management where necessary);

to discuss with the management the risk
managements and internal control systems and
ensure the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal control
systems and to review the Company’s statements
on risk management and internal control systems
(which are included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board,;

to consider any findings of major investigations on
risk management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

(where an internal audit function exists) to review
the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company and to review monitor, the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

to conduct exit interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller or internal audit
control manager upon their resignation in order to
ascertain the reasons for his departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the
Board and to prepare summary of work reports for
inclusion in the Group’s interim and annual reports;

to consider the appointment of any person to be a
Committee member, a company secretary, auditors
and accounting staff (including internal control
department) either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Committee member, company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff or dismissal of any of
them;

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xii.

XiV.
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xv. to consider the major findings of internal
investigations and management’s response;

xvi. to review the external auditor’s management
letter, any material queries raised by the auditor
to management in respect of the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and

management’s response;

xvii. to ensure that the Board will provide a timely
response to the issues raised in the external auditor’s

management letter;

xviii. to report to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions contained in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices set out in (and as amended
from time to time) Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;

and

Xix.  to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by

the Board from time to time.

(d)  In addition to the above tasks regarding to the Company’s
financial statement, the audit committee should also to
consider any other matters, as defined by the Board from
time to time; and to conduct interviews with any director,
manager, financial controller upon their resignation in

order to ascertain the reasons for his departure.

(e)  The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility in
maintaining sound and effective internal control system of
the Group to safeguard investments of the shareholders

and assets of the Company at all times.

(f)  The Group’s financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2023 and the year ended 31 December 2023

have been reviewed by the audit committee.
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12.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Siu Kai Chun (“Mr. Siu”) has been the Company Secretary
of the Company since June 2022. Mr. Siu is a qualified
accountant in Hong Kong. He reports to the Board on Board
procedures and assists the Board in the compliance of law,
rules and regulations. During the year, Mr. Siu undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge.

Shareholder Rights

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding
a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company’s articles of association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings, if requested by shareholders.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll, except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to
be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the resolutions set
out in the notice of the forthcoming AGM of the Company will
be voted by poll, and the poll results will be published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on or before
the business day following the shareholders’ meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, is available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at
shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual directors. During the year, there was no
significant change in the constitutional documents.
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Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the written requisition (the “Requisitionists”) to
the Board or the Secretary of the Company (as the case may
be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association. Such
Requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company or the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as
set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

The meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within 21 days of the deposit of
the requisition the Directors fail to proceed to convene the
EGM, the Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionists as a
result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionists by the Company.

The Articles of the Company provides that no person other than
a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as Director
at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend
and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose that person for election and also a notice
by that person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the registered office or principal
place of business in Hong Kong at least seven clear days before
the date of the general meeting. Accordingly, if a Shareholder
wishes to nominate a person to stand for election as a Director
at the AGM, the following documents must be validly served at
the Company within the period specified in the Articles, namely:

(1) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution to elect
a nominated candidate as a Director at the AGM;
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13.

14.

15.
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(2) a notice signed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be elected,;

(3) the nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and

(4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

Investor Relations

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Dividend Policy

The Company adopts a dividend policy, taking into
consideration all circumstances including the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividends: (i) the current
and projected financial performance of the Company; (ii) the
growth and investment opportunities; (iii) other macro and
micro economic factors; and (iv) other factors or events that the
Board may consider relevant or appropriate from time to time.
The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under
the applicable laws and the Articles.

Directors’ Responsibility for Preparing Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and
for ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.
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The appropriateness of the preparation of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis largely depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions as detailed in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, which in particular include: (i) U.K. Prolific,
a single largest substantial shareholder expressed willingness
to provide financial support in case the Company is unable to
meet all the obligations; (ii) the Group being able to successfully
persuade contractors not to insist on demanding repayment of
the construction cost payables and negotiate with the creditor
in the PRC to extend the borrowing period; and (iii) the Group
being able to raise adequate funding through bank borrowings
or otherwise. However, the Company has not obtained any
written confirmation that the contractors and the creditor will
not insist on demanding repayment of the construction cost
payables and repayment of borrowing. These conditions indicate
the existence of material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubts about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Directors have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis, taking into consideration the various factors set out in
the section headed “Going concern basis” on page 74 of this
annual report.
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By the order of the Board EEEGRH

Zhao Guogiang i B o

Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director THABHFHITESF

Hong Kong, 15 March 2024 BB _T_MFE=A+HA
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The directors present herewith the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Principal Activity and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries include the
exploration, production and distribution of natural gas in the PRC, and
the sales of food and beverages and money lending business in Hong
Kong, the details of which are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review
of the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2023, and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business, can
be found in the section headed ”"CEO’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. The above section
forms part of this report of the Directors.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss and Comprehensive Income on pages 65
to 66.

The state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2023 is set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 67 to 68.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated financial results and consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on page 152.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set
out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2023 are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year, together
with reasons thereof are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 69 and Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2023 are set
out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during
the financial year is as follows:

The largest customer BREP

Five largest customers in aggregate hAREFEET
The largest supplier SEARMER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate TR HER AT

N/A Not Applicable

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.

Composition of the Board

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Guogiang (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Zhenming

Mr. Cheng Chun Ying
Mr. Lee Man Tai
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Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, Directors
retiring at the upcoming AGM will be eligible for re-election. Further
details of the Directors’ re-election will be set out in a circular of the
Company dispatched together with the notice of the AGM.

Directors’ Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 21 to 22 of this annual report.

During the period under review and up to the date hereof, the
following changes in Directors’ information are disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules:

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
24 April 2023, Mr. Gu Quan Rong (“Mr. Gu”) has informed the
Company that he will not stand for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on
9 June 2023 (the “2023 AGM") and will retire as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from the conclusion of the 2023 AGM, due to his
intention to devote more time to his other personal commitments and
pursuits.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 9
June 2023, Mr. Zhao Guogiang has not been serving as an alternate
director to Mr. Gu since Mr. Gu has retired as non-executive Director
with effect from the conclusion of the AGM on 9 June 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirmed that no other
information is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ Interest and Short Position in Shares

As at 31 December 2023, none of the directors or chief executives
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO")) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Apart from the share option scheme disclosures in the section “Share
Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Share Option Schemes

The share option scheme which was adopted on 28 January 2002
(i.e. before the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange in February
2002) (the “OIld Share Option Scheme”) has already expired on 28
January 2012. After its expiry, no further share option can be granted
under the Old Share Option Scheme. As at the beginning and the
end of the reporting period up to the date of this report, no option
remained outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme. No option
was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed the Old Share Option
Scheme during both the reporting period and the comparative period.
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Following the expiry of the Old Share Option Scheme, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 25 June 2013 (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) for the purposes of recognising and acknowledging
the contributions that directors, employees, consultants, customers,
suppliers, agents, partners, advisers or contractors of the Group or
an affiliate corporation, or trustee of trust related to or controlled
corporation of any of the foregoing (the “Eligible Participants”)
had made or may make to the Group, and providing the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following objectives, namely:
(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attracting and
retaining or otherwise maintaining ongoing business relationship with
the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the long term growth of the Group. A summary of the principal
terms of the New Share Option Scheme can be founded on pages 7
to 17 of the Company’s circular dated 27 May 2013.

The New Share Option Scheme had a life span of ten years running
from 25 June 2013 to 25 June 2023. Under the terms of the New
Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, grant options
to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for shares of the Company
(“Shares”). Initially, the maximum number of Shares which may
be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
New Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) was
792,112,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the New Share Option Scheme on 25 June 2013. The
maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue, provided that the
maximum entitlement for any grantee being a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director or their associates shall be
capped at 0.1% of the shares in issue (or HK$5 million in value based
on the closing price of the shares underlying the options, whichever is
higher). Any grant exceeding these individual limits shall be subject to
shareholders” approval, with the relevant grantees and their associates
abstaining from voting. The overall limit on the number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time.
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Unless otherwise determined by the Directors at their sole discretion,
there is no general requirement of a minimum period for which
an Option must be held or any performance target which must be
satisfied or achieved before such an Option can be exercised. An
Option shall be exercisable at any time during an exercise period to
be notified by the Board to each grantee, provided that no Option
shall be exercisable later than ten years after its date of grant. The
subscription price of the options must be at least the highest of:
(a) the closing price of a Share as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be a
business day; and (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares
as shown on the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(c) the nominal value of a Share. HK$1.00 is payable by each Eligible
Participant to the Company on acceptance of an offer of an Option,
which shall be paid within 14 days from the date of offer.

No share option has ever been granted under the New Share Option
Scheme since its adoption on 25 June 2013, nor has the Scheme
Mandate Limit originally obtained at the time of adoption of the
New Share Option Scheme ever been refreshed. As at the date of
this report, 792,112,000 options (representing 8.33% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company) are available for grant under
the New Share Option Scheme (i.e. the Scheme Mandate Limit as
originally obtained on the date of approval of the New Share Option
Scheme on 25 June 2013). As at the beginning and the end of the
reporting period up to the date of this report, no option remained
outstanding under the New Share Option Scheme. No option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed the New Share Option Scheme
during both the reporting period and the comparative period.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Position

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than a director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

Number of
Name of Shareholders Nature of interests shares
REREE HE ERtE RHEE

U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group

Beneficial Owner 1,860,000,000

Company Ltd. (Note 1)
RERAAMEEBR AR EnBEBA

i}

T
(Hiz1)

Cypress Dragons Limited (Note 2)  Beneficial Owner 970,000,000
MEERAR (Hit2) BEmEAA
Wang Guoju (Note 3) Interest of controlled
TEE (Kit3) corporation

XEEE B 2,830,000,000
Notes:

52

Based on the disclosure of interest (“DI") filings, U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group
Company Limited (“UK Prolific”) is interested in 1,860,000,000 shares of the
Company (“Shares”) and convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes"”) in the
principal amount of HK$679,670,000 due in 2041 not carrying any interest with
right to convert the Convertible Notes into 4,045,654,762 Shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.168 per Share. Based on the DI filings, UK Prolific is wholly owned
by Mr. Wang Guoju.

Based on the DI filings, Cypress Dragons Limited (“Cypress Dragons”), a
controlled corporation wholly owned by Mr. Wang Guoju, is interested in
970,000,000 Shares.

The deemed interests of Mr. Wang Guoju duplicates with the interest of shares
and underlying shares of UK Prolific in Note 1 above and the interest of shares of
Cypress Dragons in Note 2 above.

TERRzEZRAR

R-ZZE-_=F+_A=+—H ARAESE
SR RITIABUAINZ ATRERR T 2D
MR G S5 EES KB E KD 5336 1&
RMEARATESARSEM 2z #EFART ¢

RERXFARGREBRG 2HFR

Total number  Approximate

Number of  of shares and percentage of
underlying underlying issued share
shares shares capital

1HE Bk HEBRTRA

ROHE HEROEH BRAEDL
4,045,654,762  5,905,654,762 62.13%
- 970,000,000 10.20%
4,045,654,762  6,875,654,762 72.33%

Mt -

1. REESEE((HEEE]) XK REXTPAKE
BEERAF ([ZEKFH]) 7 1,860,000,000 i 78 A
AR ([B4])) R A€ % 45679,670,0008 L ==
M-FRHT AR ((TRRERD FEAE
o REFARBREETE RN AR ER AR
%4,045,654,762 Ik ik 15 - HREF R 0.1688
Lo MBRESHERE ZEABAIBAELESR
BHA -

2. BEEXSEERE HIBRBEXLE2EBBENTE
EEMBERR AR ([48]) 7 970,000,000 % f& (7
P R o

3. ITEEXERRREANEENE FRME1 2 HE
RIBHER R R AR (D O s K P EE 2 2 1A
BANRMEDRAEE
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Treasury Management and Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach for its cash management
and risk control. The objective of the Group’s treasury policies is to
minimise risks and exposures due to fluctuation in foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates.

Cash has been generally placed in short-term deposits denominated
in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar, and Renminbi. The Group has
obtained bank facilities and borrowings with stable interest rates. The
Group does not foresee any significant interest rate risks. The Group’s
transactions and investment are mostly denominated in Hong Kong
dollar, and Renminbi. As the Group’s policy is to have its operating
entities to operate in their corresponding local currencies to minimize
currency risks, the Group does not anticipate any material foreign
exchange exposures and risks.

During the period under review, no hedging transactions related to
foreign exchange had been made, proper steps will be taken when
the management considers appropriate.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
and Conflict of Interests

None of the directors were interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business which competed or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year.

Related and Connected Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party and connected transaction
of the Group under the Listing Rules are set out in Note 33 to the
financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 23 to 44 of this
annual report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own Code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors of the Company. All existing directors
have confirmed following specific enquiry by the Company that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the period under review.

Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for motivating
staff, and contributes to the community in which we conduct our
businesses and creating a sustainable return to the Group.

The Company will upload the ESG Report for the year ended 31
December 2023 to the Stock Exchange and the Company website at
the same time of uploading this annual report. In order to save the
environment, the Company does not arrange hard copy printing to
every shareholder.

Working Conditions

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy in accordance with
the requirement set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code"). The Company recognizes that the Board diversity is an
essential element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience. A Board Diversity Policy,
with the aim of enhancing the quality of the Board’s performance by
diversity, was adopted on 27 August 2013 and revised on 31 March
2016.
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The Group encourages its staff to participate in external seminars and
lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates on areas of legal,
compliance, financial accounting and reporting, and market industry
practices. Through these types of training, we believe that the Group
can increase its efficiency and productivity while overall reduction of
risk and uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional development
training for the Directors and senior management to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills which includes seminars and
workshops, updates on regulatory requirements and development
and corporate governance practices.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment
to the employees. In order to maintain a healthy and safe working
environment, the Group has upgraded and maintained tools, office
and IT equipment.

Environment Protection

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the Group.
The Group complies with environmental legislation, encourages
environmental protection and promotes environmental protection
awareness to all employees of the Group.

Community Involvement

The Group is committed to participating in community events from
time to time, and to the improvement of community well-being and
social services. The Group supports and encourages staff to actively
participate in a wide range of charitable events outside working
hours, to raise awareness and concern for the community, and to
inspire more people to take part in serving the community.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated
with the continuing responsibility to monitor adherence and
compliance with all significant legal and regulatory requirements.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including customers,
suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder engagement
via different channels, the stakeholders are encouraged to give their
opinions regarding the environmental, social and governance policies
of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with safety
working environments to employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be issued in due
course.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by directors and chief executives of the Group is
currently in force and was in force throughout the year ended 31
December 2023.

Pension Schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Cap 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (Cap 57 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees are each required to
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-sponsored retirement scheme organised by the PRC
Government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of payroll to the retirement scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the PRC subsidiaries with respect to the
retirement scheme is the required contributions under the retirement
scheme.
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As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, no forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

Information on the Non-Operating Use of
Funds of the Company by the Controlling
Shareholders and Other Related Parties

During the Reporting Period, there was no non-operating use of funds
of the Company by the controlling shareholder of the Company and
other related parties.

Information on lllegal External Guarantees

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no illegal external
guarantee.

Matters Relating to Insolvency and
Restructuring

There was no matter relating to insolvency and restructuring during
the Reporting Period.

Material Contracts and Their Performance
Trust, contractual and lease arrangement
During the Reporting Period, the Company did not enter into any trust

arrangement, contractual arrangement and/or lease arrangement that
will generate any profit or loss.

Material guarantee

During the Reporting Period, there was no material guarantee
provided by the Company.

Other significant contracts

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no other significant
contracts.
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Other significant investments held

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not hold any other
significant investments save for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss on Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31
December 2023 on page 128 of this report.

Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates,
and joint ventures

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

Subsequent event

There were no important events affecting the Group, which occurred
after the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. Two out of three audit committee
members, namely, Mr. Lee Man Tai and Mr. Cheng Chun Ying,
possess recognised professional qualifications in accounting and
has experience in audit and accounting. No former partner of the
Company’s existing auditing firm acted as a member of the audit
committee within two years from ceasing to be a partner or having
any financial interest in the auditing firm. The audit committee has
adopted terms of reference which are in line with the CG Code
and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements
for year ended 31 December 2023 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, which is of the opinion that such statements complied
with applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.
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Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Zhao Guogiang
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 15 March 2024

Report of the Directors

EEEHS

B ED

HE_T_=F+-A=+—HBILFEZ#&
B BBRRECHPERESHMEBLAAR
NGIE: P

REREFE

HH B 58
TTRABRRNTEE

BEE —_E-_WNF=A+EHH

Annual Report £ #2023 59



Independent Auditor’s Report
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ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA ENERGY DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Energy Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
65 to 151, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$158,851,000 as at 31 December 2023. This condition indicates a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matter described below to
be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Refer to Note 15 and Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group tests the amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets for impairment. This impairment test is significant
to our audit because the balance of interests in a Petroleum Contract
in relation to the drilling, exploration, exploitation and production
of oil and/or natural gas included in property, plant and equipment
of HK$1,050,400,000 and intangible assets of HK$1,097,996,000
as at 31 December 2023 are material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:
- Assessing the identification of the related cash generating units;

- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow projections;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and
discount rates);

- Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the
external valuer engaged by client;

- Obtaining the external valuation report and meeting with the
external valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation process,
methodologies used and market evidence to support significant
judgments and assumptions applied in the valuation model; and

Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets is supported by the available
evidence.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Responsibilities of Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
SRR 2 T

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website
at: https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/
Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong, 15 March 2024

FRATEREEMBRERERENEZE
AZEZFABENBEBESRASHAEL
http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/
Standards/Our-views/auditre
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GoBEmREMEERER

ECT T A=t —HLFE

REVENUE

Direct cost

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Staff costs

Expenses related to short-term leases

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Fair value loss of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Provision of impairment of other
receivable, net

Amortisation of intangible assets

(Provision)/Reversal of impairment
of property, plant and equipment

(Provision)/Reversal of impairment
of intangible assets

Expenses charged under Petroleum
Contract

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income tax charge

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income/
(loss) after tax:

Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operations attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/

(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &;

Wz

BHEKA

H A
HE R DA
BT
BRARBHEEN
ME - BERRBINE

EREEEZINE
BRFEEFARREZ

TREEZAVFEERBRE
H fth & U SRR 4 R

BB EH

W - BB RREBE)
EREEEE]

BREE (BRE) IRERE

AHAHNETHEHR

H A B2 FX
BERA

B it 15 B A 8 R
FriS B X

REEmA
BREARHEMEE RS (FE)

AREEH PR E R < HA
TOIRIEBREIRINELZ
DE R
ZAUNETE? 2SN
ES g E

FEEREKRE(FR) B8

Notes

it

15
16

23
18

15

18

2023 2022
—E=-= B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
332,034 323,028
(48,367) (49,133)
5,414 8,152
(29,052) (29,823)
(18,217) (20,696)
(3.261) (692)
(36,173) (36,935)
(9,166) (11,300)
(1,603) (8,801)
(1,555) -
(25,872) (26,513)
(1,803) 2,686
(3,330) 10,340
(8,958) (7,820)
(10,150) (6,058)
(49,176) (54,616)
90,765 91,819
(21,885) (8,856)
68,880 82,963
(63,177) (134,252)
(465) (1,077)
5,238 (52,366)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeRmREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FREGET(BE) :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company PAN/NSIEZ TSN
Non-controlling interests FEVE R R 2

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ THIEE2EURE (&) 4%
(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZZS DN
Non-controlling interests AR E =
EARNINGS PER SHARE (HK cents) &ERZF (El)
- Basic — &R
— Diluted —#E
66 China Energy Development Holdings Limited Bl g5R Bl 2% 12 IR A FR A 7

Notes

it

2023 2022
—E-=F T _F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
69,529 83,265
(649) (302)
68,880 82,963
6,352 (50,987)
(1,114) (1,379)
5,238 (52,366)
0.73 0.88
0.60 0.69




Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Exploration and evaluation assets

Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Account receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Amount due to a shareholder
Other borrowings

Total current liabilities

Net current liabilities

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

FRBEE

ME - BE R&RE
EREEE
HREHEEE
BVEE
EXERIREE

FRBEERE

RBEE

P& Wi B R
BATEEFABRRZ
TREE

Hp IR - e R
N FRIA

e MIRTTHER

RBEEMRE
REBEE
H fth & 5R0B N FE R R IR

FEAN — R B R KIA
Hipfg &

RBEEAE

RBAEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities ZEELZLERABERS

Notes

it

15
16
17
18
20

21

22

23

24
25
26
27

At 31 December 2023 R=—Z-_=%+_-_HA=+—H

2023 2022
—E=-= B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,116,277 1,163,006
5,723 12,820

256 265
1,097,996 1,168,668
321 22,820
2,220,573 2,367,579
49,650 187
27,251 28,854
23,743 32,193
45,203 131,296
145,847 192,530
125,041 196,240
2,182 8,106
33,835 33,835
143,640 305,760
304,698 543,941
(158,851) (351,411)
2,061,722 2,016,168
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

At 31 December2023 A=—ZE—_=%+-HA=+—H

Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Lease liabilities HEalE
Other borrowings HmEE
Convertible notes Al MR R
Total non-current liabilities FRBEFELEE
NET ASSETS FEE
Equity =

Share capital [N
Reserves &
Non-controlling interests FEERER
TOTAL EQUITY R 2

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 151 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15
March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

Zhao Guogiang
HH B |
Director

EBEF

2023 2022

—E-= T F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
25 894 1,441
27 209,520 180,320
28 119,452 107,789
329,866 289,550

1,731,856 1,726,618

29 475,267 475,267
1,246,598 1,240,246

1,721,865 1,715,513

9,991 11,105

1,731,856 1,726,618

FESEISTAZREMBREAR_-_FT_MF
“AtTRAREESSHERKENE YA

TIHEERERRE

NP AT

Lee Man Tai

£33
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

At 1 January 2022 RZFZZ%
—fA—AR
Profit for the year FREF
Other comprehensive income: At EYE :
Exchange differences on translation & §5M £ 4 H)
of foreign operations EXzR
Total comprehensive loss FREEFRLE
for the year
At 31 December 2022 RZTZZF
TZA=t+-HR
At 1 January 2023 RZZZ=%
-fA—-AR
Profit for the year FREF]
Other comprehensive income: Efy 2N :
Exchange differences on translation # & 54 £ 44
of foreign operations EizE
Total comprehensive income FREZEYNEES
for the year
At 31 December 2023 RZF==
+ZRA=+-H

FEEREER

For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARERAEE

Convertible Non-
Issued  Contributed Share notes Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity

B4 BELS FERES
BRIRE  RABR ROEE RERE  EXRE  2HER Pt s i 3
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET TET TET TET FET TET TET TET
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (70,099)  (1,043,687) 1,766,500 12,484 1,778,984
- - - - - 83,265 83,265 (302) 82,963
= = = = (134,252) = (134,252) (1,077) (135,329)
- - - - (134,252) 83,265 (50,987) (1,379) (52,366)
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (204,351) (960,422) 1,715,513 11,105 1,726,618
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (204,351) (960,422) 1,715,513 11,105 1,726,618
- - - - - 69,529 69,529 (649) 68,880
- - - - (63,177) - (63,177) (465) (63,642)
= = = = (63,177) 69,529 6,352 (1,114) 5238
475,267 30,004 1,679,187 695,828 (267,528) (890,893) 1,721,865 9,991 1,731,856
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest income
Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Exchange gain/(losses), net
Provision of impairment of other
receivable, net
Loss on written off of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on modification of lease
Provision/(Reversal) of impairment of
property, plant and equipment
Provision/(Reversal) of impairment of
intangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Operating profit before working capital
changes

Change in accounts receivables

Change in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Change in amount due to a shareholder

Change in other payables and accruals

Net cash generated from operating
activities

RETHRERE

BR P15 75 A1 g
SLATIRB(EH AR
ME - BERRBIINE

EREEEZINE

B A

BATEEFABSZEHEELZ
N EEEBE

B Was (B51R) JFHR

EHE BB A EF

MBME - BERREZER
M S
¥ BERRERES
CRIERE)
A ERE, ORERE)
3 15 8 LTEL T
S A BE A AR B ATAT %

BNFA - Ze KREMREHRIAZ

e — 2 R SR SR
B4t OB B 3 HOE R B

REFHRERTFH
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2023 2022
—E=-= T F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
90,765 91,819
49,176 54,616
36,173 36,935
9,166 11,300
(1,019) (1,785)
1,603 8,801
1 (55)

1,555 -

- 1
(1) (1,292)
1,803 (2,686)
3,330 (10,340)
25,872 26,513
218,424 213,827
(49,928) 1,011
5,189 215

- 1,246
(18,388) (7,439)
155,297 208,860




CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Repayment of other borrowings

Proceeds from other borrowings

Interest paid

Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Effect on exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of year

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FaRE

ME R

For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

REEZHRERE
WM - BB MERE

2 W HE
RETBHFRAREFR
METHREARE
HAipfEEER
H e B AT 7R
ERHE
HERBEMR

BMEFHAEREFEHE

BReRERREMD FHE

FNzReRERRE

Exensye

FRZASRERAE

RERERRE 2ERD

e MIRITH

2023 2022
—E=-= B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(85,891) (240,642)
1,019 1,785
(84,872) (238,857)
(116,630) (75,900)
- 143,750
(36,959) (42,779)
(1,865) (15,247)
(155,454) 9,824
(85,029) (20,173)
131,296 167,280
(1,064) (15,811)
45,203 131,296
45,203 131,296
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

72

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Energy Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated on 4 April 2001 as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
Cayman lIslands. Its principal place of business is located at
Office J, 29/F, Plaza 88, No. 88 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") with
effect from 18 February 2002.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company, through its major subsidiaries, is principally engaged
in (i) oil and gas exploration; (ii) distribution of natural gas; (iii)
sales of food and beverages; and (iv) money lending business in
Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
"Directors”), as at the date of issue of these consolidated
financial statements, U.K. Prolific Petroleum Group Company
Limited (“U.K. Prolific Petroleum”) is the single largest
substantial shareholder of the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its operations and
effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2023.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’ s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’ s consolidated financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior
years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on
its results of operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B A5 R R B R

For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) which also include Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong, the applicable disclosure
required by the Hong Kong Company Ordinance and the
applicable disclosure provisions of Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Main Board Listing Rules”).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the year in which the estimates is revised
if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of
the revision and future years if the revision affects both
current and future years.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk
of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

3. WmAUEE

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 3. mEEEw
(b) Basis of measurement and going concern (b) FFTEEERBFELERE
assumption
(i) Basis of measurement (i) FrEEE

74

(i)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited Bl g5R Bl 2% 12 IR A FR A 7

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which are measured at fair values.

Going concern basis

The directors of the Company have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, the appropriateness of which largely
depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions as detailed below.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$158,851,000. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and therefore, the Group may
not be able to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normals course of business.

The Group’s current liabilities as at 31 December
2023 are mainly attributable to property, plant and
equipment/exploration and evaluation cost payables
amounting to HK$77,256,000 (31 December
2022: HK$142,966,000) and other borrowings
of HK$143,640,000 (31 December 2022:
HK$305,760,000). The Directors of the Company
are of the view that the Group will be able to
successfully persuade these contractors not to insist
on demanding repayment of the construction cost
payables and negotiate with the creditor in the PRC
to extend the borrowing period. However, there is
no certainty that these contractors and creditor will
not demand repayment.

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B A5 R R B R

For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(ii) Going concern basis (Continued)

In view of the net current liabilities position, the
Directors have carried out a detailed review of
the cash flow forecast of the Group covering a
period of not less than twelve months from the
end of the reporting period based on certain
underlying assumptions including (i) U.K. Prolific
Petroleum, a single largest substantial shareholder
expressed willingness to provide financial support
in case the Company is unable to meet all the
obligations; (i) the Group being able to successfully
persuade contractors not to insist on demanding
repayment of the construction cost payables and
negotiate with the creditor in the PRC to extend
the borrowing period; and (iii) the Group being
able to raise adequate funding through bank
borrowings or otherwise. Taking into account the
above assumptions, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within the twelve months from 31
December 2023.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

3. mMEEEE)
(b) SFIEEERFERERR
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(a) Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary; and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Joint arrangement

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control. Relevant activities are activities that
significantly affect the returns of the arrangement. When
assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has joint control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group
recognises in its consolidated financial statements, its
assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; its
liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly; its share of revenue from the sale of its share
of the output by the joint operation; and its expenses,
including its share of any expenses incurred jointly, in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(c) Foreign currency translation

()

(ii)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited A

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional currency of
the principal operating subsidiaries of the Group
is Renminbi. The Directors consider that choosing
Hong Kong dollars as the presentation currency best
suits the needs of the shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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4, BEAEFHE#)
(o) IeE;E (#)
(i) HEKEERE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance fees are recognised in profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold land and building 38 years
Leasehold improvements 3-6 years or over the term
of the lease; if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 3-8 years
Motor vehicles 6-10 years
Natural gas pipeline 10 years

Oil properties Over the units of productions

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(e)

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending for
installation, and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the year of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Costs directly
associated with an exploratory wells (drilling cost and
others) are capitalised pending a determination of
whether sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas
reserves have been discovered. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs
are charged to profit or loss.

Expenditure incurred in the preliminary exploration stage
are written off as expense as incurred.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting natural resources become demonstrable,
relevant previously recognised exploration and evaluation
assets are reclassified as gas properties under property,
plant and equipment. These assets are assessed for
impairment before reclassification.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(e) Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

()

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FE

Impairment of exploration and evaluation
assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is reviewed when facts and
circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of
an exploration and evaluation assets may exceed
its recoverable amount. When one or more of
the following events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, the Group shall perform an impairment
test in accordance with HKAS 36.

- the year for which the Group has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during
the year or will expire in the near future, and
is not expected to be renewed.

- substantive expenditure on further exploration
for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area is neither budgeted nor planned.

- exploration for and evaluation of natural
resources in the specific area have not led to
the discovery of commercially viable quantities
of natural resources and the Group has
decided to discontinue such activities in the
specific area.

- sufficient data exist to indicate that, although
a development in the specific area is likely
to proceed, the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely
to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Land and buildings 2-4 years
Motor vehicles 2-3 years

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined,
or otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease
liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-
term leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value below
US$5,000.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

84

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

()

(i)

China Energy Development Holdings Limited A

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

The interests in petroleum production sharing
contracts were amortised on unit of production
method.

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment
by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (see the accounting policies in
respect of impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) below). If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial

0]

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the

following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost; and

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other
receivables) are classified under this category if they
satisfy both of the following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less loss

allowance for expected credit losses.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category
if they do not meet the conditions to be
measured at amortised cost and the conditions
of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates
an equity investment that is not held for trading as
at fair value through other comprehensive income

on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently measured at fair value with any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss are net of
any interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in profit
or loss.

(j) Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with
the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of
that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a
financial instrument (other than trade receivables) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that
result from default events on that financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

88

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes which entitle the holder to convert the
notes into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate
for similar non-convertible debt. The fair value of
any derivative features embedded in the compound
instruments is included in the liability component.
The difference between the proceeds of issue of the
convertible notes and the fair values assigned to the
liability component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the notes into equity of the
Company, is included in equity as capital reserve. The
liability component is carried as a liability at amortised cost
using the effective interest method until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The derivative components are
measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised in
profit or loss.

If the identifiable consideration received by the Company
appears to be less than the fair value of the convertible
notes issued, the Company measures the unidentifiable
services received (to be received) as the difference
between the fair value of the convertible notes issued and
that of the identifiable consideration received, and the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqnciol Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Convertible notes (Continued)

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible notes based
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.
The portion relating to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

90

(p)

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer with reference to the
customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the year between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised product or service exceeds one
year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue
is recognised by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &;

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Employee benefits

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Employment Ordinance long service
payments

Certain employees of the Group have completed
the required number of years of service under
the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“"Employment Ordinance”) to be eligible for
long service payments upon termination of their
employment. The Group is only liable to make
such payments where the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Employment
Ordinance.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

92

(s)

(t)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the
period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finqncial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

94

(u) Taxation (Continued)

(v)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of productions processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A)

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the entities comprising the
Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

96

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.

(x) Impairment of assets (other than financial

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except investment properties, investments, deferred tax
assets and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(z) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events
are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations,
which are dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis

The Directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that
the Group will be able to operate as a going concern in
the foreseeable future, which is a critical judgement that
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The assessment
of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the Directors, about the future outcome
of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.
The Directors consider that, after taking into account of
all major events or conditions, which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption
as set out in Note 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the capability to continue as a
going concern.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Impairment on exploration and evaluation
assets, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group tests the exploration and evaluation assets, oil
properties and construction in progress under property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets relating to
Kashi Project (“Kashi Project Assets”) for impairment
according to accounting policies stated in Notes 4(e),
4(g) and 4(x) to the consolidated financial statements.
The assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating unit
is determined based on value-in-use calculations which
require the use of assumptions and estimates. While
conducting an impairment review of the assets, the Group
makes certain judgement in making assumptions including
the volume of gas to be extracted during the forecast
period, the timing in commencing the development
stage and commercial production, future gas prices and
production costs, changes in these estimates may result in
significant variance to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. In estimating
the value in use of Kashi Project Assets, the Group has
made reference to the natural gas price based on the
selling price information and other documents exchanged
and items agreed during the joint committee meeting
between the representative of CNPC and the Group.
As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of Kashi
Project Assets was approximately HK$2,148,652,000
(2022: approximately HK$2,259,873,000). Provision of
impairment of HK$4,195,000 on Kashi Project Assets
(2022: Reversal of impairment of HK$13,026,000) were
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(b) Estimation of gas resources and/or reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s gas reserves
and resources are inherently imprecise and represent
only approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements involved in developing such information. There
are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering
criteria that have to be met before estimated gas reserves
can be designated as “proved”. Proved reserves estimates
will be updated at least annually and take into account
recent production and technical information about each
field. In addition, as prices and cost levels change from
year to year, the estimate of proved reserves also changes.
The change will be considered as a change in estimation
for accounting purposes and is reflected on a prospective
basis in related depreciation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
amortisation expense, impairment expense and future
dismantlement costs. Amortisation rates are determined
based on estimated proved reserve quantities (the
denominator) and capitalised costs of producing properties
(the numerator). Producing properties’ capitalised costs
are amortised based on the unit-of-production method.

(c) Recognition of deferred income tax assets

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements, deferred income
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can
be utilised, and it is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
assets are realised. In determining the deferred income
tax assets to be recognised, management is required to
estimate the future applicable tax rate for each subsidiary
of the Company at each tax jurisdiction and the profitability
of each subsidiary, so as to estimate the future utilisation
of tax losses. Any difference between these estimates and
the actual outcome will impact the Group’s result in the
year in which the actual outcome is determined.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(d) Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires judgement,
in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker in order to allocate resources to the
segment and to assess its performance. In accordance with
the Group’ s internal organization and reporting structure, the
operating segments are based on nature of business.

The Group has the following three reportable segments:

The Exploration, Production and Distribution of Natural
Gas segment is engaged in the exploration, development,
production and sales of natural gas and the usage of pipeline
for distribution of natural gas.

The Sales of Food and Beverages Business segment is engaged
in the sales of food and beverages.

The Money Lending Business segment is engaged in provision of
loans to third parties.
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(a) Information about reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss and other

information

For the year ended
31 December 2023

Revenue from external customers

Reportable segment profit/(loss)
before income tax

Segment results included:

Interest income

Interest expense

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Provision of impairment of property,

plant and equipment

Provision of impairment of
intangible assets

Provision of impairment of other
receivables

Income tax charge

Addition to capital expenditures

As at 31 December 2023

Reportable segment assets
Reportable segment liabilities
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

The segment information provided to the Board for the
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 are as follows:

Exploration,

&Y %)

BHE_ZT-=k

HER 2)

— = — —

=

F+= A

=t BULEEE RAUZBAOBAES
SRENSMERLT -

(a) BEEAA2H o WUz ~ BEF
RERNERREMER

Production and  Sales of Food Money
Distribution of and Beverages Lending
Natural Gas Business Business Total
RRFRERE - HERRR
YERSH GEE S HEXE® st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FET
332,034 - - 332,034
114,598 (410) (209) 113,979
871 - - 871
(37,513) - - (37,513)
(34,513) (102) - (34,615)
(9,166) - - (9,166)
(25,872) - - (25,872)
(865) = = (865)
(3,330) - - (3.330)
(1,926) - - (1,926)
(22,015) - - (22,015)
30,829 - - 30,829
2,275,938 183 17 2,276,138
(480,150) (2) - (480,152)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. U
(Continued)

mRoIER &)

(a) AT 2H{ oMW BRI

(a) Information about reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss and other EENERRAEMER
information (Continued) (&)
Exploration,
Productionand  Sales of Food Money
Distribution of  and Beverages Lending
Natural Gas Business Business Total
RAREE - HERM
KERDH ZEES WEEB Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended BE-ZT-—F
31 December 2022 +ZA=+—AH
HFE
Revenue from external customers MR F 2 IRz 323,028 = = 323,028
Reportable segment profit/(loss) BRETEHAI 285
before income tax W,/ (B8) 118,413 (509) (168) 117,736
Segment results included: DEEERE
Interest income SN 1,391 = = 1,391
Interest expense BT (44,091) = = (44.091)
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BERSRE
and equipment e (35,134) (245) - (35,379)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FFREBE 2 E (11,300) = = (11,300)
Amortisation of intangible assets EREESH (26,513) = = (26,513)
Reversal of impairment of property, 1% * BE KX ER(E
plant and equipment g2{El 2,686 - - 2,686
Reversal of impairment of BV AERERD
intangible assets 10,340 - - 10,340
Income tax charge FrERHY (8,856) = = (8,856)
Addition to capital expenditures NG 7,595 = = 7,595
As at 31 December 2022 RZZEZ—fF
+=-A=1+—H
Reportable segment assets AERDHEE 2,454,360 376 18 2,454,754
Reportable segment liabilities AZHHHEE (690,616) @) - (690,618)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit

W=k oiER 2

(b) A2/ MWBNNEE - &

or loss, assets and liabilities EREEZHEE
2023 2022
—EZ=HF —E-—F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax BR P15 B A& R
Reportable segment profit before Al 25 FBRETEELAT
income tax i A 113,979 117,736
Other income E A A 152 552
Fair value loss of financial assets AT EESABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss PREECATEA
&8 (1,603) (8,801)
Finance costs A& KA (11,663) (10,525)
Unallocated head office and ROMBMRERNA A
corporate expenses (53 (10,100) (7,143)
Profit before income tax B P 15 254 Ak 90,765 91,819
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERTHER )
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit (b) IEHD B REFRNEE - &
or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) EREBZHER®E)
2023 2022
—ECZ=HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AZHHHBEE 2,276,138 2,454,754
Property, plant and equipment W - lﬂ%& ] 50,973 53,470
Other receivables, deposits and HEMEWHIE ek
prepayments SCANE S5 980 7,574
Financial assets at fair value through RAFTEEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE 27,251 28,854
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEHES 11,078 15,457
Total assets mEE 2,366,420 2,560,109
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities ERHBEE 480,152 690,618
Convertible notes ‘Hﬁéﬂxﬂ@ 119,452 107,789
Amount due to a shareholder FER — R BRERFRIE 33,835 33,835
Other payables and accruals HEMEAFIERETEA 1,125 1,249
Total liabilities mafk 634,564 833,491
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with customers:

Geographical markets
The People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC")

Major product/service
Natural gas

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point of time

Geographical markets
The PRC

Major product/service
Natural gas

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point of time
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

i B 5 45
g A RFE
(T E )

TEER R

Uy 55 7 S B
SN

it 18 7 48
i

TEER BB

R
INESIEE

W=k oiER 2

(0 ZHEREEFEHNzZWE:

Exploration,
Production and

Distribution of 2023
Natural Gas Total
RAREER - —E=-=
HERDH et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
332,034 332,034
332,034 332,034
332,034 332,034
Exploration,
Production and
Distribution of 2022
Natural Gas Total
RARIER - S
FERDHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
323,028 323,028
323,028 323,028
323,028 323,028
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers: (Continued)

Sales of natural gas

The Group explores and sells natural gas to the customer.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and the
customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

Revenue from major customers:

Exploration, Production and Distribution

RARBE

TER

of Natural Gas segment
Customer A
Customer B

885 2P
EEA
=FB

(e)

Geographic information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’ s
revenue from external customers and non-current assets
other than deferred tax assets (“Specified non-current

Wi R D BER @)
© AFRAEFAHZUE
HEEAA

(d)

(e)

AEEHREATFPHERAR
HEREmIEF#ER (MER
XNTEFE) LEAIEFER
FEMEMIABITREEIUET

FEENERZAEMERERER -

REFEEFzWH
2023 2022
—E-=F B F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
316,370 308,268
15,664 14,760

ih & &

TR AEEERBIMLELZ
W RIERBEE (REREEE
BRI ([HEEFREBEE ) WO -

assets”).
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
MRBEF 2z W EEXRBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EB-=f T ZZBZ=H T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FETT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &8 (Effith2h) - - 50,973 53,572
The PRC H 332,034 323,028 2,169,279 2,291,187
332,034 323,028 2,220,252 2,344,759
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OTHER INCOME

Interest income

Government subsidies (Note)

Gain on modification of lease

Administrative and management fee
income

Others

Note:

SEF=ASF-ALEE

Government subsidies represent the gross amount received from Employment
Support Scheme provided by The Government of Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on other borrowings (Note 27)
Interest on convertible notes (Note 28)
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 25)

7.
UPSE PN
BT FHRE (AT E)
HEE R
TRRERERA
Hit

8.

HAtEENE (AaE27)

AR R B (M7 28)

MEBERNE (Hi25)
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Haur A

2023 2022
—E-= —E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,019 1,785
- 112
1 1,292
4,394 4,908
- 55
5,414 8,152
Bzt

BT = RN BB RITREBRTRENEES

RETEITEESNEE -

& & B 28

2023 2022

—EC=F —ZE-=
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
36,959 42,779
11,663 10,524
554 1,313
49,176 54,616
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

The Group’s profit before income tax is stated after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration ZEED B &
Staff costs (including directors’ BT AR
remuneration): (RIEEEME)

Wages and salaries and other benefits ITERFS REMERN

Pension fund contributions IRIRE HR

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group
had no material forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the pension schemes in future years.

INCOME TAX CHARGE 10.
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income represents:
Current tax — the PRC BN ERTE 18 — R

Charge for the year REEEA
Deferred tax charge (Note 20(a)) RIETRIAR X (Hfat 20(a))
Total income tax charge FriSfif =

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not have assessable profit for the year.

B P 16 Bt Al g2 K

AR B R AT S B AT G M TSR A T &
TREHIIR

2023 2022
—E-=F B F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,000 980
18,152 20,620

65 76

18,217 20,696

RZE—_=F+-_A=+—HBEKZ=F
T+ -A=+—H AEETEYH
A AR REE R E R KSR EIHE R
RO SREE MR R RERE S o

FreBipx
FABSREDEERERANOBER

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(21,885) (8,856)
(21,885) (8,856)

AR AN SR B A F I &R R A - )
I LB A IS B L B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

10.

11.

110

INCOME TAX CHARGE (continued)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (“EIT") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law in the PRC, the
statutory EIT rate in the PRC is 25% (2022: 25%). In accordance
with the approval from the local taxation bureau in the
PRC, certain PRC subsidiary of the Group were entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% (2022: 15%) for the year

ended 31 December 2023.

The reconciliation between income tax charge and profit before

income tax is as follows:

10.

FRGBiBAxZ (2)

BEBECEMGSHE((LEMREHED
MBS EMESREZTHEED - FE
CHETLEMBMER2% (2=
F:25%) REFEREHHBERZE
# AEBEFTHEAMNBERARNREZ
—E-=F+-A=+—HILEEFEH
REBEBEFABHRMEIS% (==
F:15%)

PIT 15 154 7 ST BB P A5 B A A 2 3 BR
s

2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax R P15 30 A5 A1 90,765 91,819
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REAEREFER 2
applicable to profit in the respective B EETE 2 FIE
countries 13,044 13,169
Tax effect of income not taxable and AR KA 0 F
expenses not deductible X2 BB e 8,862 (4,473)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not AR AR ERBIEEIE 2
previously recognised MBTE (311) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZ REAIAEE 2
recognised W2 290 160
Income tax charge for the year FRNABRAXZ 21,885 8,856
DIVIDEND 11. RKE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 HE_T-_=-"F+-_A=1+—HILEFE
December 2023 (2022: Nil), nor has any dividend been WERMSBRGERE (2T
proposed since the end of reporting period. ) B E AR ERREMRE -
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) EREARZEF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit BREFBINEEARRAEE A
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted JE A& i T BR LA GF W E?é‘ﬁ =BG
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the BN T BGTE
year.
2023 2022
—E-= g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FEIT
Profit attributable to owners NATHEE AEGET
of the Company 69,529 83,265
Number of Shares
gl 4=|
Weighted average number of ordinary BT E AN
shares in issue 58 9,505,344,000 9,505,344,000
HK Cents
AL
Basic earnings per share BRERRBF 0.73 0.88
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

112

(b) Diluted earnings per share

12.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are based on the

following data:

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company

Adjustments for interest on
convertible notes

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company for diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
on convertible notes

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

BRER &)
(b) ERBHERF

Bz T2 _=Frk=_ZT ==

+ZA=Z+—HLEFE xR FA
HHAELE 2 EREERN TR
AT ERRTE -

2023 2022
—E-= —E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
VNG ¥ =N Kb
69,529 83,265
MR EER S
fER 2 A% 11,663 10,524
TEESREERR 2
KR EHER AEML T 81,192 93,789
Number of Shares
BRoEE
B a7 T B
F58 9,505,344,000 9,505,344,000
AR RIE 2 BEEE
Lmly 2 2 4,045,654,761  4,045,654,761
STESREERF 2
L 58 AR N 19 8 13,550,998,761 13,550,998,761
HK Cents HK Cents
AL A
R ERF 0.60 0.69
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEZ#&
The emoluments of each director, equivalent to key BEEZHE GEEREZEEEA S
management compensation, are as follows: )T

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S-_=-Hf+t-A=t-HLHFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in-kind contributions remuneration

A L] BB
e REWNG BB kL
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET
Executive directors BITES
Zhao Guogiang i Bl 08 1,482 254 - 1,736
Non-executive directors FHTES
Gu Quan Rong BEE
(Retired on 9 June 2023) (R=—ZT-=%f
NANBRE) 93 - - 93
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
directors
Cheng Chun Ying BiRE 120 - - 120
Lee Man Tai EXH 120 - - 120
Zhang Zhenming K% 120 - - 120

1,935 254 - 2,189
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

13.

114

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13. EE <)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_E__F+_A=1t—HILFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in-kind  contributions  remuneration
e 2R RIKEF
we REDMH IR HEE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
Executive directors HiTES
Zhao Guogiang it B 5 1,482 259 = 1,741
Non-executive directors FHTES
Gu Quan Rong RS 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Cheng Chun Ying HiRE 120 = = 120
Lee Man Tai EES 120 - - 120
Zong Ketao TEERIZZZ
(Retired on 10 June 2022) NATHEE) 53 - - 53
Zhang Zhenming RIKA(R_T-_F
(Appointed on 4 July 2022) Tt AMBEZE) 60 - - 60
1,955 259 - 2214
None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any HE_ZT-_—F+-A=1+—HIEFE -
emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: *EEEE$EK%TH EHELMAME (=
Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Company to the Directors T _F ) BE_T-_=F1+=
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company or A=1+—RILEE AAGLERES
as compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31 AN B <2 AW 5| 18 50 A 2N & [ 3k AE & 0
December 2023 (2022: Nil). ARSABBHE(CT_—F: &) -
China Energy Development Holdings Limited Bl g5R Bl 2% 12 IR A FR A 7
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

14. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included one (2022: one) director whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of
the remaining four (2022: four) individuals are set out below:

Salaries and allowances Fre KRR
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ROKEF B R

The emoluments of the individual fall within the following band:

14. EEFMA L

REAEE  AEBRZESFMALE
B—%(CZEZF:—R)&E%E - &l
TERMAE EXEFHNHT - H4ME
(ZZE=-—=ZF:HH) AL Z2H 5
R

2023 2022
—_E_= —E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FiBT

5,244 5,300

54 36

5,298 5,336

BEAZFMNFTIIEE

Number of individuals

EEA"Y
2023 2022
—_E_= g
Nil-HK$1,000,000 = Z 1,000,000 T 2 2
HK$1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,000% 7T £ 1,500,000 % 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,000 7% 7t = 3,000,000 78 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments was paid or payable to the five highest paid
individuals (including Directors and other employees) as an
inducement to join the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office.

HE_ZT-_=—"Fk=-_FT=-_—_F+=A
=+—HIEEE SIERAERS 5N
AT (BIEESKEMES) IS ER
EAMSIEARIIMARERE 2 BE 3K
BB AR E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥1% - BERRE
Leasehold
landand  Leasehold Furniture Motor  Natural gas 0l Construction
buildings  improvements  and fixtures vehicles pipeline  properties in progress Total
BELH

RET RENFRE  GARKE RE RMREE  BMMR  REIR 2]
HSO00 KO HKSOOD HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD
TEr TEr TAT TEr Tir TET TEr T

Cost i
At 1 January 2022 -
-F-H 5,300 2731 1,207 7,031 36,097 1,525,247 39,745 1,668 358
Additions HE = - 23 - - 4927 2,645 7595
Transferred from explorationand ~ E& B HRR
evaluation assets (\ote 17) BEWi17) = = = = = 50,798 = 50,798
Written off it - - ) - - - - )
Fichange differences EiZE - (134) (85) (37) (2,685) (114.902) (3,09) (121,208)
At 31 December 2022 and i -
1 January 2023 tZR=1-A
e
-F-H 56,300 2,597 1136 6,654 3412 1,466,070 39,365 1,605,534
Additions hE - - 1 - 493 27,461 2874 30,829
Transfer L7 - - - - = 528 (528) =
Exchange differences EiZE - (60) (38) (168) (1,19) (52,617) (1.427) (55,508)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+2f
=t-H 56,300 2,537 1,099 6,486 32,707 14048 40,284 1,580,855
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZETFEREE
impairment
At 1 January 2022 -
-F-H 2,09 1212 957 6,454 13451 414,689 - 438,862
Charge forthe year Ehg 148 364 % 250 3,288 3146 - 36935
Written off it - - ] - - - - t]
Transferred from explorationand ~ EEEHER
evaluation assets (\ote 17) BEWi) - - - = - 2,6% = 2,6%
Reversal of impairment HERE - - - - - (2,686) - (2,686)
Eichange differences EfZE - 87) ) (360) (1,087) (31,666) = (3321)
At 31 December 2022 and -
1 January 2023 +-A=t-H
)
—-A-H 3,581 1,489 967 6,344 15,652 414,495 - 442,528
Charge for the year Ehg 1482 0 62 107 3,140 31,062 - 36,173
Provision of impairment HERE 938 - - - - 865 - 1,803
Exchange differences EiZE - (48) (34) (160) (588) (15,09) = (15,926)
At 31 December 2023 W-E-=f
tZR=1-H 6,001 1,761 995 6,291 18,204 431,326 - 464,578
Carrying amount ]
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZEk
TZR=1-A 50,299 116 104 195 14,503 1,010,116 40,284 116,277
At 31 December 2022 RZFZ=
tZA=t-H 5,719 1,108 169 310 17,760 1,051,575 39,365 1,163,006
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of the Kashi Project (as defined and detailed in Note 18)
annually. These assets are used in the Group’ s Exploration,
Production and Distribution of Natural Gas segment. Provision
of impairment of HK$865,000 was recognised for 2023 (2022:
Reversal of impairment of HK$2,686,000) as the carrying
amount of the related cash-generating unit (“CGU") for
the Kashi Project approximates its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of the relevant assets of HK$2,148,652,000
has been determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method by APAC Asset Valuation and
Consulting Limited (“APAC"”), an independent valuer. The pre-
tax discount rate used was 16.8% (2022: 16.8%).

The key assumptions used in determining the recoverable
amount are as follows:

Period of projection T8 R] BABR
Gas prices (US$/m?) KRB (ExL LK XK)
Annual production volumes (MMm?) FES(BEZFK)

Inflation rate AR =
Pre-tax discount rate T PTIR =

Based on the assessment, the Group recognised a provision
of impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of HK$865,000 and HK$3,330,000 respectively
for the year.

If the forecast gas prices had been 5% lower than
management’s estimates, it would result in a increase in
provision of impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of HK$33,274,000 and HK$128,027,000,
respectively.

15. Y%  BERRE @

BEAEEHRMTER (TEEFER
MisE18) 2 AT B £ R ETRET - 5% 5
BEARASEBRARDE £ER
DA _E = FERBEREAE
865,0005%75(:2::¢-%§@5)@%@
2,686,000/ 7T) * A KR(TIEE MHE
BeEssM((BeEEEN]) 2kM@m
BERUETRE S5 - HEEEZ TR
[0 & % 2,148,652,00078 ;L i — R 78
M EAD DABEFGERERERA
AI([EAR]DFERMERSRELREE
FREETUNETE - FTAZHRIAIERR
EB16.8% (ZT__F :16.8%) °

TE 7 5E AT Uy 0] & B8 e (50 A O A 2 (R 2R 40
T
Assessment Assessment
performed on performed on
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
RZBZ=F R=-ZZT_=
+=—HB=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—H

PATRRE TS
2024-2039 2023-2039
0.139-0.218  0.155-0.241
458-1,100 104-1,110
2% 2%

16.80% 16.80%

HERAFE  AEERURNFEME - K
EEZBLREMEERELED BB
865,000 7T & 3,330,000/ 7T ©

BBEARELERE BRI 5%
EREEEMYE  BEREZERER
B ERERED B 433,274,000 7T &
128,027,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2 - Z -=F+_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

If the annual production volume had been 5% lower than
management’s estimates, it would result in a increase in
provision of impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of HK$38,834,000 and HK$149,419,000,
respectively.

If the pre-tax discount rate had been 1% higher than
management’s estimates, it would result in a increase in
provision of impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of HK$21,829,000 and HK$83,994,000,

15.

ME - BERRKRE @

BINFEELEEEBENRD5% &
RESENVE BERRERELE
BB B B 1% 5l 538,834,000/ 7t &
149,419,000 8 7T, °

BB ATIIE R BEEEILIN1% L
REBSEMDERERRERELE
EREBE DR A21,829,000/8 T &
83,994,000 7T, ©

respectively.
16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. ERAEEE
Disclosures of lease-related items: THEMBEER 2 HE -
2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
At 31 December: R+=—BA=+—H:
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Land and buildings — T REF 1,860 7,783
— Motor vehicles "= 3,863 5,037
5,723 12,820
Lease commitments of short-term leases HHEE  HEAE 3,167 75
The maturity analysis, based on NEEHEBERBEIFR
undiscounted cash flows, of the Group’s fﬁé—imugiﬁ?‘fz%ﬂ HH
lease liabilities is as follows: DT :
— Less than 1 year — D1 2,305 8,536
— Between 1 and 2 years —1&2%F 907 1,480
3,212 10,016
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 16. EREEE ®)
2023 2022
—E-= =S

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Year ended 31 December: BZ+-A=+—HLEE:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FREEE ZITEEH

— Land and buildings —tTHREF 5,650 7,567
— Motor vehicles — "= 3,516 3,733
9,166 11,300
Lease interests HEF B 554 1,313
Expenses related to short-term leases EHERBAEEN TN 3,261 692
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRLAR 2,001 15,939
Additions to right-of-use assets FTRAEEERE 2,512 11,953

The Group leases various land and buildings and motor vehicles.
Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to
4 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

AEBEEREF LM REFUARTE -
HEHZ - REE/P2E4F-HE
kIR (B ) B B B AR IR &R
NE] o 7S 1 R e 0 fRT22 55 0 M
HEEETSREEENERRD -
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SRk Rk

17. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 17. HERFEEE
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost D%
At 1 January ®n—H—H 265 53,735
Transferred to property, plant and HEBEEME  BENEE
equipment (Note 15) (Htat15) = (50,798)
Exchange differences MEHZ5 (9) (2,672)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 256 265
Accumulated impairment ZitRE
At 1 January n—HA—H — 2,836
Transferred to property, plant and EREME  RERZHE
equipment (Note 15) (Hfat15) - (2,696)
Exchange differences E X =% = (140)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H = =
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December R+=—R=+—H 256 265

120

The exploration and evaluation assets represents costs directly
associated with exploratory wells (drilling cost and others)
that are capitalised and pending a determination of whether
sufficient quantities of potentially economic gas reserves have
been discovered.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
the Kashi Project (as defined and detailed in Note 18) annually.
These assets are used in the Group’s Exploration, Production and
Distribution of Natural Gas segment. The recoverable amount
of the relevant assets has been determined on the basis of their
value in use using discounted cash flow method. The pre-tax
discount rate used was 16.8% (2022:16.8%,).

China Energy Development Holdings Limited Bl g5R Bl 2% 12 IR A FR A 7
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NBREAREA) - EFERE - M
I\Jﬁ%?ﬁziiﬁaﬁﬁﬂg’]ﬁ%%ﬁfg
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MI5E18) 2 AT W B £ FEEITIRE © R E
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost [2%:N

At 1 January m—HA—H
Exchange differences e ZE

At 31 December BR+-—A=+—H

Accumulated amortisation and Rt #HERREE
impairment

At 1 January n—H—H
Amortisation 5
Provision/(Reversal) of impairment B, CRERE)
Exchange differences ME W R

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H

Carrying amount FREE

At 31 December R+t=—A=+—H

The intangible assets represent the interests in the Petroleum
Contract which were amortised on unit of production method.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, amortisation of
HK$25,872,000 (2022: HK$26,513,000) was provided. Details
of the contract as described as below:

On 22 December 2008, China Era entered into the Petroleum
Contract with China National Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC")
in relation to the drilling, exploration, exploitation and
production of oil and/or natural gas in North Kashi Block, Tarim
Basin in the PRC (the “Kashi Project”). CNPC is a stated-owned
company established in the PRC.

8. BMILEE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,704,881 2,922,237
(96,603) (217,356)
2,608,278 2,704,881
1,536,213 1,642,641
25,872 26,513
3,330 (10,340)
(55,133) (122,601)
1,510,282 1,536,213
1,097,996 1,168,668

B EEEARANEZR HIZEE
BREAEE BHE_ZT-_=F+—
B=Z+—BLFE Citie#sE
525,872,000 L (=& = — F :
26,513,000787T) A% ZFIES T

R-BENF+_A-+_-H HBEF
REFBEGBARAREEER QA ([H
BAEMEE]) LT ABREH - URH
BE B2 AR MR RBER - BiF
FEREELHR,RRAR (B4 EH
B - REAMEESNF BEKLAE
BEE-
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18.

122

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Pursuant to the Petroleum Contract signed in December 2008,
China Era agreed to provide funds and apply its advanced
technology and managerial experience to cooperate with CNPC
for the development and production of crude oil and/or natural
gas in North Kashi Block on Tarim Basin in Xinjiang, the PRC.
The maximum term of the Petroleum Contract is 30 years from
1 June 2009, subject to extension.

Pursuant to Petroleum Contract, China Era shall bear all costs
required for the evaluation operations, and the development
costs shall be borne by CNPC and China Era in the proportions
of 51% and 49%, respectively. In addition, CNPC’s portion of
operating costs shall be advanced by China Era and recovered
from the production of crude oil and/or natural gas.

Under the terms of the Petroleum Contract, the evaluation
costs, development costs and operating costs are to be
recovered according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil/gas
and investment recovery oil/gas. Remaining oil/gas, after cost
recovery, all applicable taxes and royalty that might apply in the
PRC, is share oil/gas, which is apportioned between 51% by
CNPC and 49% by China Era.

In March 2015, the Group has issued formal application to
CNPC to apply for a two-year extension of the exploration
period of the Kashi Project beyond the original deadline of 31
May 2015, as the exploration efforts in the cooperation site
has not been completed. On 6 December 2017, the Group and
CNPC entered into a supplemental agreement to extend the
exploration period.
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BRBEMARA  MAZEXAESF
BomEE kP BEFLDRIE51% K%
49% Z Lo A < b sh - PR B
PG &R AT D R BEFEREBN
3 3 38 A E IR e S R AR R AR

BREARE DG FEAAER - FE
FRCAS R 45 48 A AR ZE AR R A AR 111 Wom R
N A% & BIWOR /S S U e o Bt Uk Bl K
NP RERNEERARERSE
FFeRGBZH /" "ihs  AoEch,/
RHBAPRABHEERFRFERD RS
{551% [ 49% -

R-ZE—hF=F AEERTEALH
SEEXRENTHEF : ARG ERR
NE BNV RERR B 2 e - EUtrR
HEZHHEBRREITN-_F—AFHA
=+—HEHMTARES REMTD
BomEEAFHHRIRERMEF
R-E—tF+-AXNB AEEHEHESD
BAmEEDRI s AERY
RHEIR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B A5 R R B R
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group has been carrying out exploration and evaluation
activities at the site and working with professional parties
to prepare data and information that are required for the
ODP for government approval before full production could
be started. Pursuant to the circular published by the State
Council of the People’s Republic of China on 27 February
2019, the ODP is no longer required to be approved by the
National Development and Reform Commission but is only
subject to new filing requirements. Per the agreement with
CNPC, the commercial stage would be commenced when (i)
the construction infrastructure for gas production stated in the
Kashi project at Akemomu, North Kashi Block, Tarim Basin,
China (the “Akemomu Gas Field”) is completed and being
commenced for production for 90 days; or (ii) when the total
gas production volume in the Akemomu Gas Field reached
300,000,000 cubic meters of gas. The commencement date of
commercial stage would be confirmed and announced by joint
committee meeting afterwards. On 25 July 2019, the Group
received a resolution of the Joint Management Committee of
North Kashi Block Cooperation Project that the filing of the ODP
of the Akemomu Gas Field was completed on 8 July 2019 and
the development stage commenced from 9 July 2019. By the
resolution of the Joint Management Committee of North Kashi
Block Cooperation Project on 16 October 2020, the commercial
production stage was commenced with effect from 1 October
2020.

Note: Provision of impairment of HK$3,330,000 of intangible assets (2022:
Reversal of impairment of HK$10,340,000) was recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2023 as the recoverable amount of the
CGU for the Kashi Project exceeds its carrying amount. The recoverable
amount of the CGU for the Kashi Project was HK$2,148,652,000 (2022:
HK$2,259,873,000) based on value in use calculation using discounted
cash flow method (level 3 fair value measurements) and by reference to
the valuation report produced by APAC. The pre-tax discount rate used for
value in use calculations is 16.8% (2022: 16.8%) for the year ended 31
December 2023.

8. BMIEEE %)

AEB—HEWBRAENERTGHE
) BIEHEBEALE NH EREHEE
FERAEZEIENRER - AERFEL
HEHEERR2EAE - REFEAR
HMEEKRER -_ZE—-hAFE-A-++
HEMGREN  BRAZHARETEL
BRERMLEZEGHE  HERTA
HEMFHRT - BIFEFPBE A RERE]
SR EEE R R )R R E
EREARBHMIR IR T EAR (MR
BEARKHE]) NBEMTHEEPEANRAR
EEABERETIRTRITIZEWH :
H(NEMNRERRANARARBERE
300,000,00037 J5 K o 7 1k & EX /9 79
EEHEEAENBAZE SR BT
EEH R-_ZE—hAhFELtA-+HH
AEBBRRTIEEBRAEEEBHAE
BEEERE MR AR MAEH%
FER-Z—NFEtAN\BZKEERTF
B TR _F—NhFLANBREARN
B RIS -_FTE+A+ AR
Tt EREEHEBAEEZES 2R
HE OWESEHR T -_ZTFL+A-—
H#G -

Hiet - BERBHEERSELENZAIKEEHE
BREREE WMREE_S=_=F+=
A=+ BLEE#REREERER
3,330,000/ 7T (Z T = —F : HEEE
10,340,000/ 7T) « BATIER v S EAL S
L2 AT U [B] £ 58 4 2,148,652,000 8 7T (= F
— —4:2,259,873,000/8 7T) ' i & IE
HAMBEReREx (E=RAFEEF2)
BEFEREEFTERSETARENGEE
MEBF -BE_E_=F+-_A=+—H
WFFE T EERBEEMEANT AR R
516.8% (ZF =4 :16.8%) °
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

124

Result for the year

18. BILEE (&)

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
recognised revenue approximately of HK$316,369,000
(2022: HK$308,268,000) from the sales of natural gas
arising from its interests in a Petroleum Contract and
the profit before income tax for the year for the sales of
natural gas was approximately HK$115,374,000 (2022:
profit before income tax of HK$118,592,000).

Assets and liabilities

Property, plant and equipment
Exploration and evaluation assets
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Commitments

Capital commitments:

Contracted but not provided for
in respect of:
— Property, plant and equipment

and exploration and evaluation

expenditures

(b)

M - BEREE
HREHEEE
BVEE
ELERIEEE
MENEE
mEBRE
FRBEME

BEFE

(9]

AARES -

EFTAERB TSI
SR
—WE - BER&RENM
B M AHAE R X
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REFERE

REE-_TE-_=F+-_A=+—
ALEFE AEEBRREER
AMAHZERELE ZHE XA
RUR £ #9316,369,0008 T (= F
— —4F : 308,268,000/ 7T) K F
NEERARZBRBAINENN A
115,374,000 T (ZE ==

B BT 15 5 Ao F 118,592,000 7%
JL) °

EEREE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,050,740 1,091,606
256 265
1,097,996 1,168,668
321 22,820
102,353 135,791
(268,954) (505,635)
(210,414) (181,761)
1,772,298 1,731,754
AR
2023 2022
—E2-= —_E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
1,945 35,477
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2023 are as follows:

Country/ place
Form of business of incorporation/  Country/place of
Name structure establishment ~ operation
HeL/
AL XGRS RIBZ/ /4% BEER/#%
China Energy Resources Holdings Ltd  Limited liability Hong Kong Hong Kong
company
hEERERERAT ERAT (0 (o
Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong ~ Limited liability British Virgin Islands - Hong Kong
Kong) Limited company
LEIRASE (FR) ARAR BRAH iBRAEE B
China Era Energy Power Investment ~ Limited liability Hong Kong PRC
(Hong Kong) Limited company
PRFRERRE (BR)BRAR  ARAA Bk hEl
Zhong Neng Finance Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Hong Kong
company
hEEEARAA BRAH Bk {2
Di Maria Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Hong Kong
company
BENEARAT ERAT B B
Team Lucky Development Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Hong Kong
company
FEERARAT ERAT B B
Fortune Great Limited Limited liability Hong Kong Hong Kong
company
EERRAT ERAT B B
RUBKEERAMIERAT  Limited liabiity PRC PRC
(Karamay Fuhai company Petroleum  company
Chemical Engineering Co., Limited)*
RUBKEERRCIARRA  ARAA hEl I
RABKEERTARAT (Karamay Limited liabilty PRC PRC
Weirun company Gas Co., Limited)*  company
RUBKERRRARAR ERAT hE i

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

* The English names are for identification only

19. RfIEB AT 2=

ARFR_E-_=F+-_A=+—HZ
FEHBRARZFBHOT

Issued and fully Percentage of
Principal activities paid share capital interests held
IEER BRIRMERE RRREAAM
Directly  Indirectly
it CES

Sales of food and Ordinary share HK§ 1 100% -
beverages and
investment holding

HERMRAHEHER EBER1ER
REERK

Investment holding Ordinary share US$1 100% =

REERK ERERIZET
Oil and gas exploration  Ordinary share HK$1 = 100%
R R LER1ER
Money lending Ordinary share HK§ 1 = 100%
& LER1ER
Investment holding Ordinary share = 100%
HK$10,000
RERR £33 100007
Investment holding Ordinary share HKS2 = 100%
REERK LER2ER
Investment holding Ordinary share HK§ 1 = 100%
REERK LER1ER
Investment holding Registered capital = 51%
R\B5,000,000
RERKR AMERARY
5,000,0007
Distribution of Registered capital - 26.01%
natural gas RMB130,000,000
AERAR AMERARY
130,000,0007C
ZEMBRARNFREERTEMNER
B

* BN EFEMRBS
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20. DEFERRED TAXATION 20. EEHIE
(@) The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (a) EFARNEATBERRETBER
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EERBEE (BF) AKX D
position and the movements during the year are as REBINT
follows:
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from: ERFRIBEE,/ (BB EER -
Exploration
costs Tax losses Total
Bh R B A BEEE W
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET
(Note)
(Hta)
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_F—HF—H (14,333) 48,306 33,973
Credited/(Charged) to profitor 5T AFAIE=
loss during the year (Kizx10)
(Note 10) 2,599 (11,455) (8,856)
Exchange differences b H =58 997 (3,294) (2,297)
At 31 December 2022 and RZZE_—_F+=A8
1 January 2023 =+—Bk
—ET-_=%—H—H (10,737) 33,557 22,820
Charged to profit or loss FFAFAERE
during the year (Note 10) (Kiz£10) (9,104) (12,781) (21,885)
Exchange differences bE 5 =5 467 (1,081) (614)
At 31 December 2023 R-EB-=F
+=—A=+—H (19,374) 19,695 321
Note: Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) represented deductible/taxable et ERMBEE (BE) RKRBERE
temporary difference in relation to exploration and evaluation AR B R K RE MR B 2 BR RS AT N
activities in the PRC and the recoverability depends on the future W FERRTR AR - A B EUR R
profitability of the Kashi Project. BR{1E B 2 R BTG
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances BLEA 75 R 3R B A9 2 IR E B I8 A B
for financial reporting purposes: DT -
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-_-
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets EET IR & B 321 22,820
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20. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of cumulative Hong Kong tax losses of
approximate HK$17,291,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: HK$17,918,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the
entity. The Hong Kong tax losses will not expire under the
current relevant tax legislation.

10% PRC dividend withholding tax would be payable on
the distribution of undistributed profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC. As at 31 December
2023 and 2022, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised as the Group’s PRC subsidiaries have no
undistributed profits.

21. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES

Account receivables (Note (a)) FEUR BRFK (K it (a))
— Sales of natural gas —SHEXRAR
Loan and interest receivables (Note (b)) EREF
— Others —HAfth

Less: Expected credit losses

Note (a):

B RHEEER

Sales of natural gas represent the receivables recognised under the

production sharing contract with CNPC for the Group’s operation in
Kashi, the PRC. The Group recognises the revenue in relation to this
operation during the current year. Sales to customer is normally made

with credit terms of 30 to 60 days.

The entire balance of account

receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, based on the invoice
dates, are not yet past due. The Group did not hold any collateral over

the balance.

The balance of sales of natural gas

are non-interest bearing. The

account receivables in the amount of approximately HK$48,320,000
are pledged to secure the Group’s other borrowing as at 31 December

2023 (2022: HKS$Nil).

KB (et b))

EERIE ()
(b) REREEHBEE

REBWEFR T -_=F+—
A=+T—HER:&BHEEEL
17,291,000 0 (=T = =& :
17,918,000 L) RELEFHIEE
E RAARERZHEBEHER
FERTAAEEASHHEZEE
BZRRERBEH - RIFE]RIT
HERE BEHEBEBETS
EIE -

NEEBEIR10% 5D IR
2 MB R R 2 R IR i RSN
FEEEEMNH R _=F
M=—FE-_—#F+-A=+—8"
IZ%ZJS%IZEF'IWJ%’ATIM
MR DK m A EERE ME
EFRTEAE -

SR B

1. BUERRK

2023 2022
—E-= —_=__

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
49,650 187
37,100 37,100
86,750 37,287
(37,100) (37,100)
49,650 187

Hiet@ : RARBEEREBEEPBE A HEER L
ZEEDKEHRAEERPEETZ
XBERZEWHIE AEBRAFE
RZEBERKE AR ELNESE
—MRIZ30E 60 B A Z B AT o R
ZEHNEUGRIEZ BEHRR S ==
FR-FE-__F+-_A=t+—HiER
H ARE BV E R Z AR A A EIRS o

AARBEEZHEBBTHE R
Z=F+=ZA=+—H " 448,320,000
BITHEREREERARE Bt
BZER(ZE==F :T%T) -
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21. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES (cContinued)

Note (b):  Loan receivable from an independent third party, Sing Pao Media
Enterprises Limited (“Sing Pao”), which was unsecured, interest-
bearing at 1% per month and repayable within 1 year have been
fully impaired during the year ended 31 December 2011. The loan
receivable from Sing Pao is secured by a personal guarantee of a third
party.

Sing Pao’s shares were listed on the SEHK but was delisted on 18
August 2015. During the year ended 31 December 2015, a winding-
up order was made against Sing Pao and the Group has already
submitted proof of debt form to liquidator of Sing Pao on 7 January
2016. On 2 November 2017, the Group’s legal advisor was informed
by the liquidator that the process of realisation of assets of Sing Pao
was completed and there was unlikely to be any surplus assets for
distribution to creditors (including the Company) after payment of the
costs of the liquidation.

The aging analysis of account receivables at the end of the
reporting period, presented based on the revenue recognition
dates, and net of allowance, is as follows:

Within 3 months =EAR

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Equity securities, at fair value

Listed in Hong Kong RER LT
Fair value of listed equity securities ERmigmE s LT
based on quoted market price A ES RN FEE

(level 1 fair value measurement)

DM
MENEE

Analysed as:
Current assets

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are based on their current bid price in an active market.

128

(F—BAFEETE)

21. BEWERR (&)

Mat): BR—ZBIE= TR BREEEEGR
AR ([RB]) BERAEIER KT AF
K% B WAR—FRNEE &K
HERBE-F——F+-A=+—H
IFFEERERE - B RERE— &
E=FHEAEREER -

BRERRR D 2 BN B R B BT IR =
EZ-RFNATN\BEHRE-BE_Z
—AFTZA=+t—BLEFE  KREK
BTERS MAEERER T
F-ALHAKBENFERAREREE
AR - N-ZT—tF+—-A-H &K
B EEERESBASH KENE
EERE T XNBERRARGFER
HREEAHIIKTFEREA (BEARR)
BRI BE AR -

FEW AR SR 35 HA R E U s #E A2 B AR
ZFIRRE ST D INBREET

2023 2022
—E=-= =
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
49,650 187

22. EAFEEFABEGZZESH
BE

AR 7 (I FEER)

2023 2022
—E-= ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
27,251 28,854
27,251 28,854
27,251 28,854

BAFEESABZZEMEEZAYT
BEDLDENERERM S 2HBRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &;

23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 23.
PREPAYMENTS MIE
Other receivables, deposits and HMEIWEIE ;T RIEFHIE

prepayments (Note (a)) (K1t (@)
Refundable deposits RERT 2

Mr. Wang Jian Guo (Note (b)) FREELAE (HE®)
Less:  Expected credit losses B TEHEEEE

Refundable deposit (Note (b))
Other receivables and deposits

AR ER] & (e (b))
H i EUGRIA R IR ®

Movement in the expected credit losses in respect of other

ARE B A5 R R B R

ESEISF A= t—ALSE

SRALEANY

HttBWRIR - BERFEARF

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
28,941 35,836
20,725 20,725
49,666 56,561
(20,725) (20,725)
(5,198) (3,643)
(25,923) (24,368)
23,743 32,193

FREMEERERES 2 BHREEE

receivables and deposits is as follows: BEHNT :

2023 2022
—EB== —EF -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Balance at 1 January MR—B—B 2z &% 24,368 24,368
Provision of expected credit losses FRARDBEHEEEBE

during the year, net 1,555 -
Balance at 31 December R+—A=+—Bz#&#H 25,923 24,368
Note (a):  For the refundable deposits of HK$29,000,000, the Group Htait(a) : whA] 3R E R4 29,000,000/ 7T 5 AN

agreed to split it into two note receivables of HK$17,800,000 and
HK$11,200,000 respectively with the maturity date on 31 August
2019. 8% per annum of interest rate is charged for the note
receivables and repayable on maturity date. HK$11,200,000 of bill
receivables was then assigned to settle the shareholder loan in 2019.
As at 31 December 2023, no outstanding balance of note receivable
included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments (2022:
HK$7,500,000).

SERESESIFAMEREKER €
%8 9 Bl /17,800,000 7% 7T & 11,200,000
BT R=ZE—NAFNA=F+—RHZ
Ho-BRERZFRNER8%  WHER
A EE - R_E—NE ¢85
11,200,000 7T 2 R R BN EH & 5
RABMNREER R =_=F+=
A=+—8 st AEMBEKRIE  B&
RBEMZBZERZIEZ REEEGE
THEIL(ZE == : 7,500,000 T) °
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23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 23.
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Note (b):

RS

On 24 September 2007, Mr. Wang Jian Guo, an independent third

SEF=ASF-ALEE

HupEWRE e RFEHN
FRIE (&)
KiaE®b): R-ZE+FAA-+MWAB > TEEL

party and Joy Even International Limited (“Joy Even”), a subsidiary
of the Group, entered into the agreement in relation to the proposed
acquisition of the 51% equity interest in each of the target companies,
Bu Tuo County Wu Zhou Minerals Limited Liability Company (77 #8 £
AMBEEABMREMLAF) and Hui Li County Wan Feng Mining Limited
Liability Company (2 5% & LiE ¥ AR FEE A7) of an aggregate
consideration of RMB498,000,000 (equivalent of HK$516,000,000)
(the “Agreement”). Both companies are limited liability companies
established in the PRC. The principal activities of both companies
are in the development of mines in the PRC. A refundable deposit
of HK$20,725,000 was paid (equivalent to RMB20,000,000) to Mr.
Wang Jian Guo upon signing of the agreement. On 31 July 2008, the
Company executed the Deed of termination regarding the proposed
acquisitions, whereby subject to the return of the refundable deposit,
both parties shall be released and discharged from their respective
obligations under the Agreement. On 10 March 2011, Joy Even issued
a Writ of Summons against Mr. Wang Jian Guo claiming the principal
and interest on the refundable deposits. On 18 June 2013, the Court
of First Instance adjudged that Mr. Wang Jian Guo shall pay to Joy
Even the sum of RMB22,723,287 or Hong Kong Dollar equivalent. As
at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the refundable deposits were
impaired and there is no provision for impairment (2022: Nil) charged

to profit or loss for the year.

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Current:

Property, plant and equipment/exploration
and evaluation cost payables (Note (a))
Other payables and accruals (Note (b))

Note (a):

Property, plant and equipment/exploration and evaluation cost

MED :

W - BB R&RES BRR
BREY AN IEEIC))

H{th & 5B N FE R AR IR
(K1t ®)

Mt () -

payables represents balances payable to contractors engaged by the
Group to perform exploration, evaluation and development works on
the area designated in the Petroleum Contract as disclosed in Note 15
and Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Note (b):

Included above are the receipt in advance from CNPC amounted to

HK$9,413,000 (2022: HK$16,203,000).

130

HfaE(b) -
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EBIE=F) BHIEREER AR
(TBEIE)) (REB 2B AR TS s
Tz RAEEERREEEZA
AmEGEANBRESREAABIREE
CEUREARETAASHZ51% K
# - A E A AR 498,000,0007T (18
£ 516,000,0007% 7T) © #Z MR A9
BRPBEKIZ2EREERE - MEA
RIZEBEBHANTREMAERES - A
SEERFTHERATEELEELM
Al iR [8] 5] € 20,725,000 7t (FHE R A
R #20,000,0007T) - R=ZFTENFt
A=+—8 ARAIBELHEREZRE
BHEZKRIERE Bt BREARE
e -EHMBREARZBHE AT
RZT——F=A+H HIERETEH
EFHHBEMSMK  BEUATREESZ
KEEMBE - RZTE—=F~AF+N
B RiMEEHRIREEEARNIE
T BARKE22,723,287 LR EEB
Lo R-ZEZ=FR=-FT=-_=_F+=A
=+—A 2B REKSHEME -
B ERAEREZBailBRERE (=
ToF | o

24. Htt RN RRIE K EET KA

2023 2022
—E-= S ——
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET &
77,256 142,966
47,785 53,274
125,041 196,240

AR E IS HRERMITE 15 R17FTIEEE - B
¥ BB RSE S SE R EEMRA
RN FAEERE - RARAELNIEE
ZEISETHIE  TERAEIEZS
BREE AR o

rtEEREREPREABAEEZE
W3R IE 59,413,000 (ZT = —F :
16,203,000 7T) °
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LEASE LIABILITIES

Within one year R—FA

In the second to fifth years, FFEERE
inclusive (BEERMF)

Less: Future finance charges W ARBEER

Present value of lease liabilities HEBRECHRE

Less: Amount due for settlement R 12EAREEEE

within 12 months (shown ZeB(NRE
under current liabilities) BEETIR)
Amount due for settlement after RNREA%EEEEZ
12 months k|

At 31 December 2023, the average effective borrowing rate was
8.44% (2022: 8.16%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract
dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

BALANCE WITH RELATED PARTY

Amount due to a shareholder

The amount due a shareholder is unsecured, interest-free (2022:

Nil) and repayable on demand.

25 HE&E
Present value Present value
Lease of lease Lease of lease
payments payments payments payments
HEMAR HEMK
HEAX 2B E HEMK ZHE
2023 2023 2022 2022
—EC=E —EC-=E —E-F —EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHETL
2,305 2,182 8,536 8,106
907 894 1,480 1,441
3,212 3,076 10,016 9,547
(136) (469)
3,076 9,547
(2,182) (8,106)
894 1,441
RZEZ=F+=ZH= -t— B ¥i5
=i mfﬁf%kfru?ﬁs 4% (=T ==
8.16% ) ~ A X IVMN AKX BHETE I
AmSASEBEmEAFEEFERR
26 Eﬁiggﬂﬁﬁkizmﬂﬁﬁ

BN —BRRMIA

FEN—BBREFEAEEF 25 (=
T FE) RERERER -
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27.

28.

132

OTHER BORROWINGS

Secured other borrowings BEEREMEER
Repayable: FEEE
Within one year or on demand —FERNHILBEK
In the second year REZF

In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FEFERF

(BREEME)

The other borrowings were denominated in RMB, charged at an
interest rate of 8.5% per annum, repayable partly in 2 years and
fully in 3 years from the drawdown date and pledged by the
account receivables of the Group (Note 21) under the Petroleum
Contract dated 22 December 2008, the supplemental contract
dated 6 December 2017, the second supplemental contract
dated 20 June 2019 and the gas sales agreement dated 27
April 2020. In addition, the rights of natural gas sharing amount
and sales revenue under the product sharing agreement and
the sales agreement were pledged as security for the other
borrowings as at 31 December 2023 (2022: same pledge as at
31 December 2023).

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 22 January 2009, the Company, Totalbuild Investments
Holdings Group Limited (the “Vendor”), Mr. Wang Guoju,
as guarantor and beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of the Vendor, China Era, as a guarantor for the
Vendor, entered into the agreement (the “Agreement”) in
relation to proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in
Totalbuild Investments Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“Totalbuild
Investments”). Totalbuild Investments held the entire issued
share capital of China Era which had entered into the Petroleum
Contract with CNPC as disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FE

28.

BERMABIZERERAD A

HEE

2023 2022

—_E=-= —E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
353,160 486,080
143,640 305,760
209,520 68,320
- 112,000
353,160 486,080

HiEEAARKEE  FH*E8.5% -
BRAZBB2FAEE M E3F
NEEZE2H  YRIEBHA-ZZTZTNSF
+ZAZ+ZHZRAHEH  HEAZ
T—+tF+-_ANBz#HRxEY B
BIE-—NFAAZTHZE_HHRE
HEABBHAZT_TFMA=-_++tH
25 R e DA N & [E e IR SR 1E 1R
(FI5E21) o AN MZEBE_=F+=A
=+—H ERSKHEREEHEE
TRZRAROSKESERHEEWARERE
EREEMEEZER(ZE
HoFT-_=—F+-HA=+—HB2EHHE
@) °

JRRRE

R-ZZFZFAF—A=-+=H ARQA
HEREZERBAERAR (TES ) REE
ERE(ERENTZERARET 2F
ERETRAZESZEGA)  FEER
(EREDZERA) SLEZH KB AANR
BB (FB)ERAR ([HARE]D 2
100% A ANt R M AT ek ([ Rx ik )
HERBEHRHATEFR2EDET
A mABEFEREFEAHRERER]
YT REEH (WEREMBHRRME S
PRiZEE) ©
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

On 3 January 2011, all the conditions of the acquisition of the
first designated area of the Akemomu Gas Field (the “First
Designated Area”) and the entire issued share capital (the
“Acquisition”) of Totalbuild Investments and its subsidiaries (the
“Totalbuild Investments Group”) have been fulfilled.

As a result of completion of the Acquisition and the First
Designated Area, the Tranche 1 consideration in the sum of
HK$2,558,000,000 was paid by the Company with Tranche 1
convertible notes of HK$2,558,000,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.168 each, to the Vendor including the shortfall amount
of HK$1,279,000,000 which was deposited with an escrow
agent pursuant to the Agreement. The sale loan consideration
payable by the Company in the sum of HK$906,299,000
was satisfied by deducting the deposit in the sum of
HK$804,000,000 and with the balance of HK$102,299,000 to
be settled in cash or otherwise agreed.

According to the Agreement, the shortfall amount of
HK$1,279,000,000 convertible notes (“Shortfall Notes”)
should only be released to the Vendor upon the Company
having received a written certificate issued by the competent
evaluator confirming that the First Designated Area be
evaluated on the basis of unrisked economic evaluation on or
before 31 May 2015 (the “Relevant Period”). No such written
certificate was received by the Company on or before 31 May
2015. Under the terms of the Agreement, the Shortfall Notes
have been returned to the Company for cancellation. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, a gain of HK$92,459,000
was recognised in profit or loss, and approximately
HK$1,309,405,000 related to equity component of the
convertible notes have been transferred from convertible notes
reserve to accumulated losses as the result of the cancellation of
convertible notes.

In addition, according to the Agreement, the Group is not
entitled to the benefits and interests of the second designated
area in the Akemomu Gas Field. A separate shareholders’
approval will be required for the Acquisition of the second
designated area by issuing additional convertible notes of not
more than HK$7,442,000,000 subjected to the fulfillment of
certain conditions as stipulated in the Agreement within the
Relevant Period.

28. AR ERE #)

R-B——F—A=0 WEXMRE
ARBAzE—fHEEwE ((F-EEH
B RHARERAWB AR ([HAKR
EE@M) 22 #ThA ((KWESE
B 2B IR EEEMK -

HRERBBEEERE —EEHE -
WMARRERSRERE0.168E T
M & H #1758 —#£2,558,000,000 5
T2 ABIRERE U HE—#REB
2,558,000,0007 7T (BIEC 1B E 3
TR EERERNZ%1,279,000,000
BIL) cARREFNZHEEERR
f£ 906,299,000/ T B & 18 A& %
% 804,000,0008 st M & 1+ i & 58
102,299,000 LB AR € sk i E 2 &
75 HELT o

RIERZ I - =% 1,279,000,000 3 7T 2
AR ER((ZEERDEATRART
BEWEREFGEMELEMEERRE
—EEHWEER_E—RERA=1+—
Hok 2Bl ([ERHIR ) 1R 1% & i 4%
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AFHITHEBREEmMN B ER K =S
92,459,000/ 7T + AT R IEE = I o

#8 B8 =~ #91,309,405,000 7 7T & & A #2
KREEH#EEBREREBAE -

AN - RIRZ R - AN B R
RENRHE e EHE 2 Flem R
REBERERZBEIER A TR
1% 317 T B 38 7,442,000,000 % JT 2 58
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28.

134

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The Tranche 1 zero coupon convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$2,558,000,000 with maturity in 30 years was
issued on 3 January 2011. The convertible notes do not bear
any interest and are freely transferable, provided that where the
convertible notes are intended to be transferred to a connected
person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Group (other than
the associates of the noteholder) such transfer shall comply with
the requirements under the Listing Rules and/or requirements
imposed by the SEHK, if any.

The noteholders may at any time during the 30 years from the
issue date convert the whole or part of the principal amount of
the convertible notes into new ordinary shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.168 per share, provided that
(i) no conversion rights attached to the convertible notes may
be exercised, to the extent that following such exercise, a
holder of the convertible notes and parties acting in concert
with it, taken together, will directly or indirectly, control or be
interested in 30% or more of the entire issued shares of the
Company (or in such percentage of the issued share capital of
the Company as may from time to time be specified in the Hong
Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as being the level for
triggering a mandatory general offer); and (ii) no holder of the
convertible notes shall exercise the conversion right attached to
the convertible notes held by such holders if immediately after
such conversion, the public float of the shares fall below the
minimum public float requirement stipulated under Rule 8.08
of the Listing Rules as required by the SEHK. The conversion
price of HK$0.168 per share is subject to adjustment for
consolidation, sub-division or reclassification of shares, capital
reduction, rights issues and other events which have diluting
effects on the issued share capital of the Company.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined at the issuance of the convertible
notes. The fair value of the liability component, included in the
non-current liabilities, was calculated using a market interest
rate of equivalent non-convertible notes. The effective interest
rate of the liabilities component is 11% and the interest
expenses will be charged to profit or loss over the loan periods.
The equity component of the convertible notes, representing
the difference of the fair value of the convertible notes and
the fair value of the liabilities component, was included in the
owner’s equity and denoted as convertible notes reserves.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited Bl g5R Bl 2% 12 IR A FR A 7
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The movement of the principal amount, liability component and
equity component of the convertible notes are as follows:

As at 1 January 2022 n=
i'JE\Fa’fJE (Htst8)

Interest expenses (Note 8)

As at 31 December 2022 and n=

at 1 January 2023

Interest expenses (Note 8) ) B
As at 31 December 2023 JrAp—

Up to 31 December 2023, convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$599,330,000 have converted into ordinary shares
of the Company. No convertible notes have been converted
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The convertible notes with outstanding principal amount of
HK$679,670,000 as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 have
maturity date falling 30 years from the date of issue on 3

January 2011.

29. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: iy
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SRAB0.0 AT L BR
At 1 January and 31 December R=A-RAEk
+=A=t-H
Issued and fully paid: BRTRER:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each GRAEB. AT EBR
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—-AR
+ZA=1-H

28. AR ERE #)
AR E A S SE - BIEHH RIES

DZEBMT
Carrying amount
BREE

Liability Equity
component component
BERS EEBD
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
F—HA—H 97,265 695,828
10,524 -

E+ZA=+—-BK
ﬁiﬁ%ﬁw

=F—H—H 107,789 695,828
11,663 =
—=#+=-HA=+—H 119,452 695,828

BEE-T_=ZF+=-A=+—H8 &=
¥8 /599,330,000 T 2 Al MR EEE
HRB|ARRAREBR HE_T_=F
RZB-_—F+-R=+—HIFE"
WA AR R EH IR -

RZEZ=FR_ZF__F+=A
=+—H TRREBZAEELRSRE
#679,670,000% 7T * ME|#H &%4TH
(B—=——&—A=H)#stm="1F-

29. f& A&
2023 2022
—ECCE —E-C

Number Amount Number Amount

of shares of shares
gt +5 B ¢8
HKS'000 HK$'000
FAT FET

25,000,000,000 1,250,000  25,000,000,000 1,250,000

9,505,344,000 475,267 9,505,344,000 475,267
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30. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

136

FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a shareholder

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes

Net assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

30. R DB P BT K

2023 2022
—E-= g
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Jokia F#ET FEIT
kRBEE
R B RR Z S 1,554,812 1,553,224
_____ 1554812 1,553,224
REEE
BEAFEEFAEBRZ
SREE 27,251 28,853
Hib ez IE - e &
TR 3B 858 7,448
B& MIBITER 6,932 11,153
35,041 47,454
REEE
H i B 308 R FE R 5RIB 1,124 1,243
JES — B B SRR IE 29,635 29,635
________ 30,759  308/8
RBEEFE 4,282 16,576
EEHBERABERS 1,559,094 1,569,800
kRBER
Al R 119,452 107,789
_______ 119,452 107,789
EEZRE 1,439,642 1,462,011
e
f& 2 29 475,267 475,267
i 31 964,375 986,744
MR 1,439,642 1,462,011

The financial statement was approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 15 March 2024.

Zhao Guogiang
HER
Director

EFE

EFEeN T _NF=A+RBEHAER
WRETBZ I IEHRE -

Lee Man Tai
E3vE S
Director

EF
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31. RESERVES 31. &
(a) Group () &%H
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements TEB v RESEIEEHN R
therein are presented in the consolidated statement S B =R E MR E R & T A RER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and AEREEFERANZET -

(b)

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Company (b) AAF
Convertible
Contributed Share notes Accumulated
surplus premium reserve losses Total
B4 L
R &4 RiVEE KREBRE RiER w@st

HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAT AT TAT TR THT

At 1 January 2022 WZEZZF

—A—H 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (1,453,861) 1,012,503
Total comprehensive loss AEEREEA

for the year kS| - - = (25,759) (25,759)

At 31 December 2022 RZTZZF

+-A=1+—"H 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (1,479,620) 986,744
Total comprehensive loss AEERABE

for the year Fak:c] - - = (22,369) (22,369)

At 31 December 2023 R=ZB==%

+=ZB=+—-H 91,349 1,679,187 695,828 (1,501,989) 964,375
Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group REFEEMEREH
Contributed surplus FHRAZ
The contributed surplus represents the difference between EYRARBYR B E-_TE—F
the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued in — At++EBAREES4ERE - B
exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries IR B A T 2 B BT RY AN T 2%
and the value of the underlying assets of the subsidiaries FrZARABBG 2 EEREKEA
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation on 17 January B EAEBEME 2 =58 o
2002.
Share premium BR17 %18
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the BIERESHRE AR EZETE B
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders DR EBEEEEFERTIADE T
of the Company under certain circumstances. It represents RATIEE o fE ) iE BB LA
the excess of the nominal value of shares issued by the NEEBEITIRHEE Y Sh%E o
Company.
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31.

32.

138

RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group

(Continued)

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity

31. #E @)
(b) &ARDT (&)

IR R IR 1

component of the convertible notes issued (i.e. option to EBRIERHTSD

convert the note into share capital).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

PR ZBIZHE) o

32. EXREE

rEEHFEZMER B (E)

ARBRERFHEEED BITIRRK
D (IR BMRRE

AEERHEHRZEAAELDT

2023 2022
—EC-=HF —E-F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted but not provided for BRTHERR T EERE
in respect of:
— property, plant and equipment — M WBEREERBER
and exploration and evaluation Al B 2
expenditures 1,945 35,477
— capital contribution in a subsidiary — W BARNEE 113,346 117,600
The Group had capital commitments of approximately RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—H  £5H
HK$ 1,945,000 (of which approximately HK$1,001,000 would be HARARDHOE - AEN D HH

borne by CNPC) (2022: HK$35,477,000 of which approximately
HK$4,302,000 would be borne by CNPC) and HK$113,346,000
(2022: HK$117,600,000) as at 31 December 2023 in respect of
capital expenditure of exploration, production and distribution
of nature gas segment and capital contributions in a subsidiary

respectively.

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FE

EARASTURE —HBRARIZEE
D BB B AN EHE 49 1,945,00078 7T (E
# 49 1,001,000% 7T F1 B 5 i & B
¥&) (T = — 4 : 35,477,000/ ' &
fF 494,302,0007% 7T B A B G i S B
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117,600,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BEALRS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as those
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, i)
the Group had the following material transactions with related
and connected parties which are not members of the Group:

Salary to the ultimate holding shareholder

Other payables and accruals to the ultimate
holding shareholder

Right-of-use assets related to the ultimate
holding shareholder

Lease labilities related to the ultimate
holding shareholder

Depreciation of right-of-use assets related
to the ultimate holding shareholder

Lease interest related to the ultimate
holding shareholder

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’ s directors as disclosed
in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARAFEEBRAR AR
REETZRZERGEAKREREE
W ERAK T o FRéx
DWBEEIN

FAT 2B

SMBHRRE
KEIE@F$EI5}Z
BRABIZEABMRBEALBEATEARR

2022
—m——

—_—

HK$'000
TET

2,960

(1,164)

4,183

(4,276)

1,130

161

5
2023
—E-=
HK$'000
FET
TRHF—R2EEEBRREROE S 2,910
Hi MR REIE &R
R AR R (5,386)
FERAEEEMN RIS
1,486
HEBBE@ANKKRIZERER
FREEENEBRSIER
S 2,571
HER BN & EIERIER
142
TEEEAEME

AFAEETEERBABZME (B
MARREEL N 228 BEREE
WIS RERMIEE13 ©
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34. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 34, iR ER

R IGEKE B A MBI IARAF, an effective 51% owned
subsidiary of the Company, has non-controlling interests
("NQI"). R IBEREBERRBR A A, an effective 26.01%
owned subsidiary of the Company, is a direct subsidiary of 72 I

BKE/BAMETIARAR.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of 524z
Bk = 8 A Mt THBR A A, before intra-group eliminations,

is presented below:

ARABEREAS % w2 B AT
RNBEREBAMCTARAREAFE
s ((FERER]) - ARFER
HH26.01% w2 B R F A IHK

BERRABERARARUIBEKES A M
EIERARZEEMBAR -

W ERT) 2HAT -

BRARNIBRESAHIETHRARE
mhEm s MBERBE CREt &

2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
For the year ended 31 December BE+t-A=+—HLEE
Revenue Wz 15,664 14,761
Loss for the year REEEE (877) (408)
Total comprehensive loss ZHEBEEE (1,404) (1,634)
Loss for the year allocated to NCI PERFFERERZ
FREE (649) (302)
For the year ended 31 December BE+=-A=1+—HILLEE
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEES (FrA) B Re 358
operating activities (1,230) 1,218
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFARSFE (453) (2)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRERE S L), #n
cash equivalents R (1,683) 1,216
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Current assets MBEE 4,041 4,563
Non-current assets EREN B EE 14,564 17,827
Current liabilities mENEE (5,011) (7,392)
Net assets BEFE 13,594 14,998
Accumulated NCI 2t IEE iR 9,991 11,105
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 35. %8B & RERK

OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise

Cash available on demand

B AR

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities during the year:

At 1 January 2022

Changes in cash flows:
Proceeds from other borrowing
Repayment of other borrowing
Interest paid

Payment of lease liabilities

Non-cash changes
— Modification of lease
— Recognition of lease liabilities
— Interest charged
— Exchange adjustments

R-—F-—_%—A—H
ﬁ%/)lb;zﬁ@j .

R tE & M1S5R

H bt EER
ERFE
MEREMNR

HFEEH
—HE BN
—-HEREESE
— BB/ ZFE
—EH P

() REREFARTEE

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FET

45,203

2022
B F
HK$'000
FET

131,296

(b) EXEERMERH2AEET

TRERNFARNEEKRARER

PHaEH

Total liabilities

Other Lease from financing
borrowings liabilities activities
HREED

HibfE & HEBE BB E
HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T&T TET TET
453,750 18,789 472,539
143,750 = 143,750
(75,900) = (75,900)
(42,779) = (42,779)
- (15,247) (15,247)

25,071 (15,247) 9,824

- (5,154) (5,154)

- 11,953 11,953

42,779 1,313 44,092
(35,520) (2,107) (37,627)
7,259 6,005 13,264
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023

Changes in cash flows:
Repayment of other borrowing
Interest paid

Payment of lease liabilities

Non-cash changes
— Recognition of other payables
— Modification of lease
— Recognition of lease liabilities
— Interest charged
— Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2023

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

142

China Energy Development Holdings Limited FE

RZE—_—F+—-A
=t+t—8k
—F-=%—H—H

ReREZET !
HEEER
BEFILE
HERBEMNK

FREEH
—FERE L A 5K
—HEEB%
—EREERE
—2HIBRZHME
—ERAE

R-B-=+=A#
=+—H

35. MEBREHRERMTE &

(b) EXERERH2AEET

(&)
Total liabilities
Other Lease from financing
borrowings liabilities activities
HREED
HiEE HE&E BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T#ET FET
______ 486,080 9547 495627
(116,630) - (116,630)
(36,959) - (36,959)
- (1,865) (1,865)
(153,589) (1,865) (155,454)
- (7,343) (7,343)
= (71) (71)
- 2,512 2,512
36,959 554 37,513
(16,290) (258) (16,548)
20,669 (4,606) 16,063
353,160 3,076 356,236
36. WAEE

R-F_=F+-A=+—8 ~&H
Y EEAERKAAB (=T ==

&) -

BERMABIZERERAD A
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

- To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

- To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

- To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company only, comprising share capital and
reserves of HK$475,267,000 (2022: HK$475,267,000) and
HK$1,246,598,000 (2022: HK$1,240,246,000) respectively as
at 31 December 2023.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group has not adopted any formal dividend
policy. Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. For details
of cash flow forecast carried out by the Directors, please refer to
Note 3(b)(ii) “Going concern basis”.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has various financial assets and liabilities, such as
trade receivables, which arise directly from its operations. The
main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the
normal course of the Group’s business are foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk.

37.

38.

EXERER
AEEERALZAEA

— REBAEEEEERS . BB

PR R EAME ST A AN B H R
(Bl 3 Ko M) &5

- XRAKEZBEMMER: R

- REEAUMBASEZARE
BEET] -

R—_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—H &%
EEARBEREARRBEE AE
hiEE  ERPERERAKRREESD R
475,267,000 T (& = =

475,267,000 7% JT) & 1,246,598,000 %
T(ZT = =% :1,240,246,000/87T) °

REBEESRNE RIS MNEELEARAR
B NEREBEARRERKRROR -
ELERRBRBIROFE ZRIIAE
BZAREGHTEZRERHEX -BHITK
TR BTN BRAKERERE T8
5ﬂU’§$E‘ﬂ§&i‘Eiﬂ‘J“ﬂi§If-Hxéf&%E ZN
SEIMRAEMEXREBE - BB
EENHEBER A5EKEBIMR

B BITHE - BERD  AREITH
BEHEORBER  FHERBRBEAR
B -AREFETNRSRERANF
15 - B2 BIMTEE 3(0)i) ([ R e EE]) -
PR REE

rEEEZHeRMEERAE  WEH
EBEEEREECEIREFA &
AEE-REFKEETEAEESRT

AE4XZTERBRAINERR - FIXE
b FEERR  REBEERRKERARE
1 R o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

144

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Directors review and agree on policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in foreign
currency exchange rates relates primarily to certain bank
balances and other receivables in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entity to which the
balances relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is
primarily Hong Kong Dollar.

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a 3%
strengthen/weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi would have increased/decreased profit before
income tax by HK$31,000 (2022: HK$130,000). This
sensitivity analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of financial liabilities will fluctuate because of
the changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from other
borrowings. The interest rates and terms of repayment
of interest-bearing borrowings are disclosed in Note 27.
Other borrowings in Note 27 at fixed interest rate are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has not
formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk. The
policies to manage interest rate risk have been followed
by the Group are considered to be effective.

In 2023 and 2022, as the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities, the Group’ s
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

38.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Except for
account receivables from sales of natural gas, loan
and interest receivables, and the other receivables and
deposits that were further explained in Notes 21 and 23
to the consolidated financial statements respectively, the
Group principal financial assets are the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and bank balances placed
in financial institution and reputable banks separately.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any credit risk exposure for those financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and bank balances.
For credit exposures to customers, Group management
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. For credit
exposures associated with the refundable deposits and
loan receivables, Group management had assessed the
credit quality of the debtors, taking into account their
financial position, their business developments and other
factors. In addition, the Group ensures that the amount of
the loan is within the limit set by the Group.

Accounts receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for accounts
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between the
Group's different customer bases.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)
Accounts receivables (Continued)
The following table provides information about the

Group's exposure to credit risk and expected credit losses
for account and note receivables as at 31 December 2023

and 2022:

Sales of natural gas: HERAR :
Current (not past due) BVER (SR HA)
Loan and interest receivables: FEWEREF S
More than 1 year past due AT F M E

38. iR ERE®)
(0 EER#®)

FEW RR 5% (4)

TRE®REER

o

=

—EC=FKRC
F+-_A=+—HAX&EHE

& M B R % 3R 4 P D B 2 12 B R
BREEMREREEREZEN

Expected
loss rate
FEHEER
(%)

(%)

0.00%

100.00%
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2023
—E-=F
Gross

carrying Loss
amount allowance
IREAE EERE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
49,650 -
37,100 37,100
86,750 37,100
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 38. I AKRERE &)

(c) Credit risk (Continued) (0 EER#)
Accounts receivables (Continued) FEWBR % ()
2022
==
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHIE R % IREAE E R E
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000
(%) FAT FET
Sales of natural gas: HERAR -
Current (not past due) BNER (kg ) 0.00% 187 =
Loan and other receivables: FEW E R F B
More than 1 year past due BEITFU E 100.00% 37,100 37,100
37,287 37,100
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience TEHEEXTDRERAE L FER
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect EELRAE UFELEEIEH
differences between economic conditions during the B oUARBKEBRTHERARA
period over which the historic data has been collected, ZAEARR C BRI R AR &
current conditions and the group’s view of economic R 5 FE IR R IA TE Bl FF R 2 48 ARk
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. MZBEZERE -
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of FRNEBREREFRER 2BE
account and note receivables during the year is as follows: BERESHET -
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEL
Balance at 1 January R—A—RZz#&&% 37,100 37,100
Expected credit losses reversed REANTEEEEERE
during the year = =
Balance at 31 December Rt+=ZA=+—RHz&&% 37,100 37,100
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of each reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payment, is as follows:

At 31 December 2023
R-Z-=%
t=A=t-H

Other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities

Due to a shareholder

Other borrowings

Other borrowings -
interest portion

Convertible notes

38. I AKRERE &)

(d) RBESRER

AEBZBRRERERBATR
BHRBECTFR  UHERHEAE
FREARSHERE AEMEEH
RBEEEZRBESHFR -

AEEZEBABERE®REHK
ERAHRUBRARZBBAE

AR
In the In the
Within second third to After
one year year fifth years five years Total
RE=
R-FER RE_& aE REE# #st
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Hi A HER
JER A 125,041 = = = 125,041
ﬂﬁ;i/\ﬁ\ 2,305 907 = = 3,212
B — B R B 33,835 = = = 33,835
HinfEs g 143,640 209,520 - - 353,160
HinfsE -
F S &t 25,365 7,663 = = 33,028
ARRER - - - 679,670 679,670
330,186 218,090 = 679,670 1,227,946
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(e)

38. B EEE (&)
(d "BELSEKE)

In the In the
Within second third to After
At 31 December 2022 one year year fifth years five years Total
i S— RE=F
+-A=+-H R—%FR —fF aE REF#% ey
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAET FET FAET FET FET
Other payables and accruals HiEAZHER
et 196,240 - - 196,240
Lease liabilities HEAR 8,536 1,480 - - 10,016
Due to a shareholder R —2REZRE 33,835 - - - 33,835
Other borrowings Hitfg s 305,760 68,320 112,000 = 486,080
Other borrowings - HinfgE -
interest portion FEEHH 25,990 5,807 9,520 = 41,317
Convertible notes ARER - - = 679,670 679,670
570,361 75,607 121,520 679,670 1,447,158
The Directors have carried out a detailed review of the EFEFAEHASEERES W
cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period of not FEHRBE DR+ R HE
less than twelve months from the end of the reporting WIR S mETEARE B E R
period, and other measures taken by the management as HE M (4R 6 B 7% & M &
referred to in Notes 3(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial 3(b)iNFTiRil) RAEAEE B
statements, and consider that the Group will have HEZREEES  WJAENH
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations —E =+ A=+ —HF
as and when they fall due for the twelve months from 31 TZEAAEE 2 BB -
December 2023.
Price risk (e) ERXEMR
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from REBAZHDEREBEITHF 2K
equity instruments classified as trading securities. All of $I,E<Fﬁfk 2 IRARBIREE

these investments are listed.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy and sell
trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that
of the Index and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in terms
of industry distribution, in accordance with the limits set
by the Group.

cFEREREDR/ LM -

AEEBZ EFTIRERE BB
EW-BARBHEEERS 2R
TE TR B EE R A B 5 R IR H
TEE R EMITEEERE LR
INERAEEZRBESTEED -
KEHRGREBEASERE ZRE
EITEIM EZ DA -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 38. I AKRERE &)

(e) Price risk (Continued) (e) EEREBRE)
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined NTEBERFFNBREDN IR
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of RmERRRABERRERETE -
reporting period for those trading securities. If equity price WA ABE EF5%  BlEE=—F
had been 5% higher, the profit (2022: profit) for the year =+ -A=+—BILEEZ
ended 31 December 2023 would have been increased by HwA(ZZZZF & F) B
HK$1,363,000 (2022: increased by HK$1,443,000). Had 1,363,000/8 T (ZZE -4 : 8
the relevant equity price been 5% lower, there would be 1,443,000 7T) ° fin B B R AN E
an equal and opposite impact on the profit (2022 profit). BTIBKS% - Al &MN (2T ==
F R EEeEHERERY
@ .
(f) Categories of financial instruments h eMITASE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FAET
Financial assets: TREE:
Financial assets at fair value through BRATFEEFABRZZ
profit or loss TRLEE 27,251 28,854
Financial assets measured at REBHKATEZ
amortised cost (including cash and SHMEE(BREEREe K
cash equivalents) ZRKE®) 117,373 163,156
Financial liabilities: SRAE:
Financial liabilities measured at REBHEKATEZ
amortised cost =R 634,564 833,491
(9) Fair value (9) A¥EE
The carrying amounts of the Group’ s financial assets RirE IR R RATR M 2 AN &
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated I’fﬁﬂ‘iﬁ?&imﬁ‘lﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ
statement of financial position approximate their respective HHEXBEZ A FEERE
fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December2023 &2 —Z - =+ _-_A=+—HILFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 1 inputs:

inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March
2024.

39.

40.
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EREFRXSTHEEERKRDMNERR
BERXNZER  TXREBEERL
FEEBRATFEENE  HEAR
AERTFEEZEENZRABELR
= fE&R :
FRBABE: AKREIRGERH
EEEMSERS A
FAEEXREREZ
HWE(REHE) -

F_MBABE: FTAZ—HZHREMN
WINZEERBBEZE
EZoEEAERE A
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hEF B BHE

At 31 December2023 R _=F+=-_A=+—H

Results 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
#iE —E-=f “EZ--f ZE-—F ZT-TF ZT-NF
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET FET

Revenue gy 332,034 323,028 353,588 173,480 158,060
Profit/(loss) before income tax BETERALEF, (B8) 90,765 91,819 201,768 (19,093) (185,168)
Income tax (charge)/credit Fiig% (Fx),/#H% (21,885) (8,856) (77,049) 4,397 111,677
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF/ (BE) 68,880 82,963 124,719 (14,696) (73,491)
Profit/(loss) attributable to FEERR S R

Non-controlling interests wFl/ (EE) 649 302 944 (523) (1,139)
Profit/(loss) attributable to RNRBEA AR

owners of the Company wA (E18) 69,529 83,265 123,775 (14,173) (72,352)
Assets and liabilities 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
BERERE —E-=f —T--Ff T ZZT-TF ZZT-—NF

HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TE® TFAL FAT FAT FAT

Total assets BEHLE 2,366,420 2,560,109 2,851,578 2,757,368 2,417,204
Total liabilities BfEBE (634,564) (833,491)  (1,072,594)  (1,145,999) (896,696)
Non-controlling interests R S (9,991) (11,105) (12,484) (11,187) (10,804)

Attributable to owners of the ARNEEAR AR
Company 1,721,865 1,715,513 1,766,500 1,600,182 1,509,704

152 China Energy Development Holdings Limited # Bl 8RB 2 IR R B PR A 7



€
illd

www.cnenergy.com.hk



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	CEO’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.5
  /CompressObjects /Off
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize false
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSongHK-Light
    /CFangSongHKS-Light
    /CGuLiHK-Bold
    /CGuLiHKS-Bold
    /CGuYinHK-Bold
    /CGuYinHKS-Bold
    /CHei2HK-Bold
    /CHei2HK-Xbold
    /CHei2HKS-Bold
    /CHei2HKS-Xbold
    /CHei3HK-Bold
    /CHei3HKS-Bold
    /CHeiHK-UltraBold
    /CHeiHKS-UltraBold
    /CJNgaiHK-Bold
    /CJNgaiHKS-Bold
    /CKanHK-Xbold
    /CKanHKS-Xbold
    /CNganKaiHK-Bold
    /CNganKaiHKS-Bold
    /CO2YuenHK-XboldOutline
    /CO2YuenHKS-XboldOutline
    /COYuenHK-Xbold
    /COYuenHK-XboldOutline
    /COYuenHKS-Xbold
    /COYuenHKS-XboldOutline
    /CPo3HK-Bold
    /CPo3HKS-Bold
    /CPoHK-Bold
    /CPoHKS-Bold
    /CSong3HK-Medium
    /CSong3HKS-Medium
    /CSuHK-Medium
    /CSuHKS-Medium
    /CWeiBeiHKS-Bold
    /CXLiHK-Medium
    /CXLiHKS-Medium
    /CXYaoHKS-Medium
    /CXingHK-Medium
    /CXingHKS-Medium
    /CXingKaiHK-Bold
    /CXingKaiHKS-Bold
    /CYuen2HKS-Light
    /CYuen2HKS-SemiBold
    /CYuen2HKS-Xbold
    /CYuenHK-SemiMedium
    /MBanquetPHK-Medium
    /MBanquetPHKS-Medium
    /MBeiHK-Bold
    /MBitmapRoundHK-Light
    /MBitmapSquareHK-Light
    /MComicHK-Medium
    /MComicHKS-Medium
    /MComputerHK-Bold
    /MComputerHKS-Bold
    /MCuteHK-Light
    /MCuteHKS-Light
    /MDynastyHK-Xbold
    /MDynastyHKS-Xbold
    /MEllanHK-Xbold
    /MEllanHKS-Xbold
    /MElleHK-Light
    /MElleHK-Medium
    /MElleHK-Xbold
    /MElleHKS-Light
    /MElleHKS-Medium
    /MElleHKS-Xbold
    /MFinanceHK-Bold
    /MFinanceHKS-Bold
    /MGentleHK-Light
    /MGentleHK-Xbold
    /MGentleHKS-Light
    /MGentleHKS-Xbold
    /MHGHagoromoTHK-Light
    /MHGHagoromoTHK-Medium
    /MHGKyokashotaiTHK-Light
    /MHGReithicTHK-Light
    /MHeiHK-Bold
    /MHeiHK-Light
    /MHeiHK-Medium
    /MHeiHK-Xbold
    /MHeiHKS-Bold
    /MHeiHKS-Light
    /MHeiHKS-Medium
    /MHeiHKS-Xbold
    /MHeiSungHK-UltraBold
    /MHeiSungHKS-UltraBold
    /MJNgaiHK-Medium
    /MJNgaiHKS-Medium
    /MKaiHK-Medium
    /MKaiHK-SemiBold
    /MKaiHKS-Medium
    /MKaiHKS-SemiBold
    /MLadyHK-Medium
    /MLadyHKS-Medium
    /MLiHK-Bold
    /MLiHKS-Bold
    /MLingWaiFHK-Light
    /MLingWaiPHK-Light
    /MMarkerHK-Bold
    /MMarkerHKS-Bold
    /MMetallicHeiHK-Bold
    /MMetallicHeiHKS-Bold
    /MNgaiHK-Bold
    /MNgaiHKS-Bold
    /MQingHuaHK-Xbold
    /MQingHuaHKS-Xbold
    /MRazorHK-Xbold
    /MRazorHKS-Xbold
    /MRockyHK-Bold
    /MRockyHKS-Bold
    /MSmartHK-Bold
    /MSmartHK-Medium
    /MSmartHKS-Bold
    /MSmartHKS-Medium
    /MStiffHeiHK-UltraBold
    /MStiffHeiHKS-UltraBold
    /MStreamHK-Bold
    /MStreamHKS-Bold
    /MSungGoldHK-Black
    /MSungGoldHKS-Black
    /MSungHK-Bold
    /MSungHK-Light
    /MSungHK-Medium
    /MSungHK-Xbold
    /MSungHKS-Bold
    /MSungHKS-Light
    /MSungHKS-Medium
    /MSungHKS-Xbold
    /MWindyHK-Bold
    /MWindyHKS-Bold
    /MYoungHK-Medium
    /MYoungHK-Xbold
    /MYoungHKS-Medium
    /MYoungHKS-Xbold
    /MYoungHeiHKS-Xbold
    /MYuenHKS-Light
    /MYuenHKS-SemiBold
    /MYuenHKS-Xbold
    /MYuppyHKS-Medium
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 2400
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 2400
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 2400
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier (JC200103)
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName (http://www.color.org)
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

  >>
  /ExportLayers /ExportVisiblePrintableLayers
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting true
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks true
      /AddColorBars true
      /AddCropMarks true
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks true
      /BleedOffset [
        8.503940
        8.503940
        8.503940
        8.503940
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 8.503940
      /MarksWeight 0.250000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /UseName
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [595.276 841.890]
>> setpagedevice




